City Hall Council Chamber
1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 * www.coachella.org

AGENDA

CiTY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CiTY OF COACHELLA
THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT,
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY,
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

March 23, 2022
6:00 PM Regular Meeting

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361,
along with the Governor’s State of Emergency Declaration issued on March 4, 2020,
this meeting may be conducted via teleconference.

This meeting’s options will be either in-person or via Zoom:

In-Person Meeting  If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link:

Location:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQOmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09

Coachella City Hall ~ Or One tap mobile : 16699006833,,88457271898#,,,,*606140#
Council Chamber ~ Or Telephone:
1515 Sixth Street US: +1 669 900 6833
Coachella, CA Webinar ID: 884 5727 1898
Passcode: 606140

Spanish: El idioma espafiol esta disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opcién en la
parte de abajo de la pantalla

e Public comments may be received either in person, via email, telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit
of 250 words, or three minutes:

o InReal Time:

If participating in real time via Zoom or phone, during the Public Comment Period, use the “raise
hand” function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing
*9 on the keypad.

o In Writing:
Written comments may be submitted to the City Council electronically via email

to cityclerk@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written
comments received will be forwarded to the City Council and entered into the record.

o If you wish, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6240 before 5:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Page 1



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09
mailto:cityclerk@coachella.org

Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 23, 2022
Page 2

e The live stream of the meeting may be viewed online by accessing the city's website at
www.coachella.org, and clicking on the "Watch Council Meetings™ tab located on the home page, and
then clicking on the "live" button.

CALL TO ORDER:

RoLL CALL:

VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETINGS:

1. Resolution No. 2022-30 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Council/ Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the Agenda
or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda”

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS:

2. Behavior Health Campus - Glenroy Hotel
3. Presentation on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Response Efforts
4. Presentation — Energy Efficiency Upgrade Project

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

CONSENT CALENDAR:

(It is recommended that Consent Items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is
requested by a Council Member or member of the audience.)

5. Regular Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2022, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District,

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental
Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella
Redevelopment Agency.

6. Voucher Listing — EFT's/FY 2021-22 Expenditures as of March 23, 2022, $1,318,936.46.

7. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-29, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella to adopt a list of
Projects for Fiscal Year 2022/23, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and Accountability Act.

8. Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2022/2023, the Local Streets and Roads

Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for
Measure A Funding

Page 2



http://www.coachella.org/

Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 23, 2022
Page 3

9. Contract Amendment No. 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for construction materials and quality
assurance testing in the amount of $25,000 for the Avenue 48 and Harrison Street Sewer Improvement
Project, City Project S-24.

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

10. Resolution No. 2022-34, Approving Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

11. Public Hearing for Resolution No. 2022-31 Conducting Property Owner Protest Ballot Proceedings and
Resolution No. 2022-32 Approving the Formation of Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39
(Sevilla-Tract 38084) (“LLMD 397), Confirming the Engineer’s Report, the Assessment Diagram and
Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments.

12. Coachella Entertainment Park:

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-33 approving Entertainment Permit No. 22-01 for the Coachella Entertainment
Park outdoor entertainment venue located on a 1.24 acre site at 85-994 Grapefruit Blvd (APN# 778-030-
005 and 778-180-001). Applicant: Nicolas Meza

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/ Authority on any item of interest to the public that
is not on the agenda but is in the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3)
minutes.

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees.
City Manager’s Comments.

ADJOURNMENT:

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection on the
City’s website Www.coachella.org.

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Page 3



http://www.coachella.org/

STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Dr. Gabriel Martin, City Manager

Best Best & Krieger, LLP, City Attorney

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-30 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual
Public Meetings (AB 361)

Iltem 1.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-30 to continue fully or partially
virtual public meetings.

BACKGROUND:

The Brown Act generally allows for teleconference or virtual meetings, provided that the physical
locations of the council members joining by teleconference are posted on the agenda, that those
locations are open to the public and that a quorum of the council members is located within the
City. Newly enacted AB 361 provides an exception to these procedures in order to allow for fully
virtual meetings during proclaimed emergencies, including the COVID-19 pandemic.

In March of 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended portions
of the Brown Act relating to teleconferencing, enabling fully virtual meetings without having to
post the location of the council members attending virtually. Many cities and other public agencies
have been holding public meeting using virtual platforms since this time. In June of 2021,
Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which provided that the exceptions contained
in EO N-29-20 would sunset on September 30, 2021.

On September 10, 2021, the Legislature adopted AB 361, which allows public agencies to hold
fully virtual meetings under certain circumstances. Governor Newsom signed the bill into law on
September 16, 2021. Because it contained an urgency provision, it took immediate effect. The
Governor then suspended AB 361 until October 2, allowing a transition period from the prior
Executive Order.

Under AB 361, cities can hold meetings without a public meeting space and without providing
notice of the council members’ teleconference locations if there is a Governor-proclaimed state of
emergency and either state or local officials are imposing or recommending measures to promote
social distancing or the City Council determines that meeting in person will be unsafe for attendees.
If the virtual meeting is due to social distancing recommendations, the City Council does not have

Page 4




to make any findings at its first meeting under AB 361. However, to continue meeting virtually,
the City Council must find that state or local officials still at least recommend measure to promote
social distancing. The findings must be made within 30 days of the first meeting and every thirty
days thereafter.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

On March 4th, 2020, the Governor proclaimed a state of emergency due to the COVID-19
pandemic. The state of emergency remains in effect as of the publication of this report.

Virtual meetings are currently allowed under AB 361 because state and local officials are
continuing to recommend measures to promote social distancing. In the case of the pandemic, the
requisite standards for holding virtual meetings are low. The City Council would only have to find
that any state or local official is recommending measures to promote social distancing. Under the
plain language of the statute, there does not have to be an order requiring social distancing, and
the recommendation only needs to come from a state or local official. Nothing in the bill requires
that the recommendation be a formal recommendation of a local health officer or in any sort of
formal guideline.

Under AB 361, the “local agency” — which the Brown Act defines as the City, not the City Council
- may utilize virtual meetings if the “legislative body” makes the required findings. As defined in
the Brown Act, a “legislative body” includes both the City Council and all committees and
commissions. Because the City Council is the most appropriate board to make findings and policy
decisions on behalf of the City, the proposed resolution contains a two-pronged approached: It
provides that all commissions and committees shall be authorized to utilize virtual meeting
procedures for 30 days, and authorizes each individual commission or committee to make findings
in support of virtual meetings if the City Council has not renewed or terminated the resolution.
Thus, the proposed resolution provides the City Council with the flexibility to allow its
commissions and committees to host virtual meetings, while still maintain the City Council’s
jurisdiction to require in-person meetings as warranted.

AB 361 allows the use of fully virtual meetings under the foregoing conditions, but it does not
prohibit hybrid meetings. By adopting the proposed resolution, and continuing to renew it as
conditions warrant, the City Council and any subordinate boards are not precluded from holding
meetings that have some traditional components and some virtual or telephonic components. The
City Council (and other City boards) may hold meetings where some members join in the Council
Chambers and some members join virtually. The City Council may also continue to allow both
live and virtual public comments, together with reduced capacity in the Chambers as conditions
warrant. For any hybrid meetings, AB 361 requires that members of the public be able to make
live public comments directly to the Council or other board using telephonic or electronic means
and that the agenda identify the means for making public comments.

As noted above, by adopting the proposed Resolution, the City Council is not prohibited from
returning to fully in-person meetings. The Resolution is intended to provide the option to utilize
the AB 361 procedures in lieu of the Brown Act’s standard teleconferencing requirements. At
future City Council meetings, a consent calendar item will be placed on each agenda to reconsider

Page 5

Iltem 1.




and potentially renew the Resolution.

FiscAL IMPACT:

None.
ATTACHMENT:

Resolution No. 2022-30

Iltem 1.

Page 6




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-30

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, MAKING FINDINGS AND
DETERMINATIONS UNDER AB 361 FOR CONTINUED VIRTUAL
MEETINGS

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code 8§ 54950 et seq.) generally requires
local agencies meeting via teleconference, including through other virtual or electronic means, to
provide public access at each location in which members of the legislative body are
teleconferencing; and

WHEREAS, the Legislature recently enacted Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361), which
amended Government Code section 54953 to allow local agencies to meet fully virtually during a
proclaimed state of emergency if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures
to promote social distancing; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Governor issued a proclamation declaring a
state of emergency on March 4, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, pursuant to section 8625
of the California Emergency Services Act; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of
emergency and finds that state or local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social
distancing; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires that the City of Coachella, including all
commissions, committees, and other Brown Act bodies shall continue to hold virtual meetings
pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e).

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AND FIND AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into
this Resolution by this reference.

Section 2. The City Council and all other commissions, committees or other Brown
Act bodies of the City shall be authorized to continue to meet virtually in accordance with
Government Code section 54953(e) and without compliance with section 54953(b)(3).

Section 3. This Resolution does not prevent or prohibit the City Council or any
commission, committee or other Brown Act body of the City from holding hybrid meetings
(containing both virtual and in-person components) or from meeting in-person, provided such
meetings comply with AB 361 and with all state and local health orders. Commissions, committees
and other Brown Act bodies shall comply with all rules established by the City Council and/or
City Manager for attendance at meetings.

Section 4. The City Council shall take action to renew this Resolution every thirty days
for as long as any state or local officials continue to recommend any measures to promote social

81211.00100\34422055.2
Page 7

Iltem 1.




distancing, but the City Council may terminate the Resolution at any time. In the event that more
than 30 days pass between regular City Council meetings, the City Council shall take action to
renew this Resolution prior to taking any action or engaging in any deliberation or discussion in a
virtual meeting; renewal of this Resolution may occur either at the beginning of the next regular
meeting or at a special meeting called for such purposes. In the event this Resolution has lapsed,
and the City Council has not terminated it, any commission, committee or other Brown Act board
of the City shall be authorized to, and shall, make any required findings in order to meet virtually
under AB 361.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any
such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provision
or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. The City Council
declares that the City Council would have adopted this Resolution irrespective of the invalidity of
any particular portion of this Resolution.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Resolution No. 2022-30
Page 2

81211.00100\34422055.2
Page 8

Iltem 1.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-33 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23" day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

81211.00100\34422055.2

Page 9

Resolution No. 2022-30
Page 3

Iltem 1.




PROPOSED COACHELLA

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CAMPUS
Riverside Uni @y Health System




HPI SCORE:
10.8

Percentile

Less More

N\
b\

0
City: Coachella

HEALTHY PLACES INDEX

Policy Action Areas

Economic
Education
Transportation
Social
Neighborhood
Housing

Clean Environment

Healthcare Access

Item 2.







Rendering of a 4-Bedroom Casita. Each guestroom
has exterior entrance plus access to large common area

and kitchen. Large bathrooms and exterior living space.

| -

ez




-
=

‘—v“‘—v- Ty ’/

l
r

- >
—~——

11a. Grocery Store

11b. Adult/Children’s MHUC
11c. Primary Care Outpatient
11d. Pet Hotel

11e. MH & SUD Outpatient
11f. Housing Administration

11g. Recreation (movie theater)

11h. Recreation Center/Administratior

Page 14

11i. Laundromat
12. Garden, playground, splash pad, half court, etc.

program key

mev’h—s-nr-c-l
32 faevely e (3-Dextrooem), 42 Gontso
wPts (2 Dedroom), and 42 Sngie et (1 Dodeooe)

Outdoor Area
TPEROT U e ¢ WA Ap gt vl
g

Recovery Residence

Two sy aparsTert e homen weth 3 whared

S ory househok! mossl ey s so: 3 sharad
McTen, Pwared iy DOSPy 3 rECOWSon corter
M sige OoCUpERCY oG

Crisis Recovery Treatment (CRT)
Mory hounates] mosst reddore s Wit 3 shased
ared tnaady fa By e recTaton Corter

15 Mg DOCURENCY TOONT.

Childrens Mental Health Urgent Care
(MHUC)/Respite/Welcome Center

Two stery housefold MO esadenre =it & Sared
acTen, Sured unary oty Pered reornaten
ot m”m\m
wpace. J4 diutio ccnupncy roomes (sapEeaned gets
e oy

Small Single Famdy Residence
Trroe Dudtxn tas Batrors wngks Leely
FEEIUNCT W NG MICTER, 3 B room

127 parking Spacos ICAod I eNOIoSad parang
structuse, and 187 suafaco parking sgaces Bwougout
he ®e  mUN of 369 panung 1paces

Adult Residential Facility

40.bed augmented board and care




Guestrooms are configured in 51 casitas, summarized in the below table.
The Property layout features exterior spaces, amenities, exterior
guestroom entrances, patios, fire pits, and exterior seating and activity
areas. The entire property is designed to maximize outdoor exposure for

guests.
Configuration Count Keys Sizex
2-Bedroom Casita s 10 1,383 sf
4-Bedroom Casita 18 72 1,839 sf
6-Bedroom Casita 28 168 2,696 sf

Total

4-Bedroom Casita Plan 6-Bedroom Casita Plan

PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING, RECOVERY RESIDENCE, CHILDREN’S WELCOME

CENTER, STRTP FLOOR PLANS

Item 2.




ﬁ ¥ - - “ﬁ— - H ;‘ '. | | ‘. ;Iilei'l\\\\
POTENTIAL LOCATION -

The resort site is flat and irregularly shaped, encompassing approximately 35.0+
acres. Zoning is “C-G” General Commercial, a fairly broad commercial zoning that

allows multi-family development.




\ .\,\\\\\\\\\\.\_\\\\\ \\
i

EXISTING PROPERTY




EXISTING PROPERTY




EXAMPLES FROM CEDAR GLEN PROJECT




BEFORE AND AFTER ARLINGTON RECOVERY
COMMUNITY & SOBERINGEEINTER - RIVERSIDE




BEFORE AND AFTER ARLINGTON RECOVERY
COMMUNITY & SOBERINGg=4:NTER - RIVERSIDE




Item 2.

Crisis Campus

Page 22




Item 2.

Page 23




Item 2.

Page 24




Item 2.

Page 25




City of Residence

Norco, 1.1%

2 " Riverside @ Corona
Murrieta, 1.1% ~\ \ . -
Wildiiae Ta%s. '\ ® Hemet M Lake Elsinore
Temecula, 1.8% N\ ® Moreno Valley I Perris
Perris, 2.5%__ & ;
N M Temecula H Wildomar
Moreno Valley, 2.8% __
3 M Murrieta H Norco
Lake Elsinore, 2.8% __
M Blythe < 1% i Eastvale < 1%
H Menifee < 1% H Mira Loma< 1%
/
i 4 San Bernardino < 1% i San Jacinto < 1%
o, // ,/’ -
Hemet, 2.8%._. / H Beaumont <1% i Homeland < 1%
Chroma i 5% / M Jurupa Valley < 1% M Orange County <1%
4.L70 )
_IRedlands < 1% M San Pedro < 1%
\'\_ * [+) D,
\_Riverside, 71.6% i Santa Ana<1% M Tarzana < 1%
@ Not Documented < 1% M Victorville «1%

Ld Winchester < 1%

GEOGRAPHY OF COMMUNITY MEMBERS RECEIVING HELP AT

ARLINGTON RECOVERY COMMUNITY & SOBERING CENTER - RIVERSIDE

Item 2.




* Full Service Partnerships
* “Do whatever it takes” mentality to providing care

ar)

n-ye

Event Rate (#Events/persol

3.00

2,50

2.00

1.00

0.50

0.00

e 24-7 crisis availability

Smaller caseloads per case-bearing staff

» Effective in multiple areas; RAND study in LA DMH found

* Decreased inpatient utilization
* Decreased homelessness

* Decreased rates of arrests

* Increased linkage with PCP

253

94% ¢
98% ~L
95% xb
85%
0 33
0 02 0 01 0.00
Arrests Mental Health Physical Health Long-Term Car
Hos pt I atiol Emergencies Emergencies
B Intake Follow-Up

Page 27

Event Rate (# of Events/Person- Year)

0.07
0.02
]

Adult FSP Outcomes FY 2019-2020
0.96

0.7

Mental Health
Emergencies

Acute Hospitalizations Physical Health

Emergencies

B ntake  Follow-Up

Item 2.




* Forensics Full Service Partnerships

* Decrease in arrests, psychiatric hospitalizations, crisis emergency
room use.

* |Increases in Substance Use identification and Substance Use services

 Jail days decreased by 48%
* Increase in Physical Health visits

Arrests

A 4

DECREASED

82%

Mental Health
ED Visits

DECREASED

88%

Physical Health
Visits

INCREASED

24%

Page 28

Acute Psychiatric
Hospitalizations

DECREASED

65%

Item 2.




Updates

* State grant opportunity
* Countywide RFP




l‘ Riverside

University
HEALTH SYSTEM




\\

ES‘F}T;‘%

"
i
cle




Background

» Energy cost can account for up to 10% of a local government’s annual operating bu
» Parks, Streetlights, & Facilities - $638,000

» Sanitary District - $400,000
» Water Authority - $550,000
» TOTAL: $1,588,000

» Improving energy efficiency in local government facilities can produce a variety of
energy, environmental, economic benefits:

» Reduce GHG emissions
Reduce Energy Costs
Increase Economic Benefit (Job Creation and Market Development)

Improve Indoor Air Quality and Productivity

vV v v Vv

Demonstrate Leadership

Page 32




Lighting - Existing City Facilities

Interior Lighting

Exterior Lighting




Lighting - Energy Upgrade Examples

Interior Lighting Exterior Lighting




HVAC/Mechanical/Plumbing Systems




HVAC/Mechanical/Plumbing Systems




Examples of Energy Efficient Projects




Sanitary Projects

* Pump Systems Evaluations

Pumping and aeration equipment are a
significant energy user at wastewater facilities.
Evaluate current systems and identify
opportunities for potential energy efficiency
Improvements such as pump replacement or
rebuilding.

* Process Systems Evaluations

Evaluate the efficiency of each facility process
system and potential  alternatives to
technologies currently in use for each process:

Sewer flow monitoring

SCADA upgrades

Substitution of fine or ultra fine bubble
aeration

Dewatering and solids  management
alternatives




Water Projects

e Pump Systems Evaluations

Evaluate current systems and identify opportunities
for potential energy efficiency improvements such as
pump replacement or solar use.

* Process Systems Evaluations

Evaluate the efficiency of each facility process
system and potential alternatives to technologies
currently in use for each process:

« Improvements to the variable frequency drive
systems (VFD) or installing new VFDs at site




Tools

>

California Government Code Section 4217 allows the City to forgo its
standard low-bid public procurement processes to implement turn-key
energy services projects when the City finds this procurement method in
its best interest

Benefits include:
» Eliminate the cost associated with contracting a consultant to run the RFP process.

» Timing: faster project completion which results in quicker realization of the
savings value.

Disadvantages include:
» More difficult for the buyer to ensure they are getting a competitive quote.
» May lose other vendor interest if they feel sole source scenario likely to persist.

» If real problems or significant shifts occur within that vendor, project can get stuck
or face other risks.

Page 40




Next Step

» Allow Staff to engage energy solutions companies that can
provide:

» Preliminary energy analysis and audits of current
systems

» Develop of list of Facility Improvement Measures (FIM)
» Product options and design alternatives

» Cash Flow Pro-Forma, potential financing and rebate
sources

» Cost Analysis/Cost Savings
» Recommended Implementation Process

Page 41




Questions/Comments




Item 5.

City Hall Council Chamber
1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 * www.coachella.org

MINUTES

CiTY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CiTY OF COACHELLA
THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT,
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY,
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION,
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

March 09, 2022
6:00 PM Regular Meeting

CALL TO ORDER:

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 6:02 p.m. by Mayor
Hernandez.

RoOLL CALL:

Present: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember Galarza
(arrived at 6:15 p.m.), Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez.
City Treasurer Aviles, and City Clerk Zepeda

Absent: None.

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, along with the Governor’s State of Emergency Declaration issued on March
4, 2020, this meeting was conducted both in-person and via teleconference/electronically.

VIRTUAL PuBLIC MEETINGS:

1. Resolution No. 2022-23 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361)

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation

Made by: Mayor Hernandez

Seconded by: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto

Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

City Manager Martin asked Council to remove Item 6 from the agenda and continue the item to the meeting of
March 23, 2022.

Page 43



http://www.coachella.org/

Item 5.

Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWAI/SA-RDA March 09
Page 2

Motion: To approve the agenda with the modification

Made by: Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez

Seconded by: Mayor Hernandez

Approved: 4-0, by a unanimous voice vote

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

City Manager Martin led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS:

2.

State Legislative Update by Oracio Gonzalez with Ollin Strategies

Councilmember Galarza arrived to the meeting at 6:15 p.m. during the first presentation.

3.
4.
S.

6.

Presentation on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Response Efforts
Holiday Parade Overview
Park Field Use Fee Review

This item was removed during Approval of the Agenda.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

There were no written communications.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

7.

10.

11.

Regular Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2022, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District,
Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental
Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella
Redevelopment Agency.

Voucher Listing— EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2021-22 Expenditures as of March 9, 2022,
$3,905,121.15.

Approve Resolution No. 2022-24 Adopting a Recovered Organic Waste Produce Procurement Policy as
required by SB 1383.

Adopt Resolution 2022-27 Authorizing the City Manager to submit an application to the California State
Library for Budget Act of 2021 (SB 129) funding in the amount of $5,250.000 for the Library Annex Project
with a total project budget of $6,000,000.

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-28 funding a Full-Time Department Assistant Il position for the Code
Enforcement division.

Page 44




Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWAI/SA-RDA March 09

Item 5.

Page 3

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Appropriate funding for 2022 Suavecito Sundays Event Series.

Authorize Facility Use Permit fee waiver for the Desert Recreation District use of the Coachella Library
during the 2022 summer months.

Professional Service Agreement with KOA Corporation to develop Plans, Specifications & Engineer’s
Estimates for the 2022 Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvement Project, City Project ST-134.

Authorize City Manager to sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between FIND Food Bank and
Eleanor Shadowen Senior Center.

Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement for the acquisition of real property for the westerly
extension of Fifth Street to complete the Pueblo Viejo Transit Hub Paseo.

Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Third Supplement to Memorandum of Understanding Regarding
Governance of the Indio Subbasin under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

18. Authorization to File a Notice of Completion for City of Coachella Water Meter Exchange Project.
Motion: To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 7 through 18.
Made by: Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez

Seconded by: Councilmember Galarza

Approved: 5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote, with the exception of a

4-0-1 vote on Items 10 and 16, with the abstention from *Mayor Hernandez

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember
Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and *Mayor Hernandez.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Mayor Hernandez on Items 10 and 16.

ABSENT: None.

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

19.

Resolution No. 2022-25, Initiating the Formation of Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No.
40 (Mariposa Pointe-Tract 32074, 32074-1 & 32074-2) (“LLMD 40”); and

Resolution No. 2022-26, Declaring Intention to Form, Levy and Collect Assessments Commencing in
Fiscal Year 2022/2023, preliminary approval of Engineer’s Report and Setting Time and Place for Public
Hearing to Conduct Property Owner Protest Ballot Proceedings.

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation
Made by: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto
Seconded by: Councilmember Galarza

Approved: 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

Page 45




Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 09| "™ >

Page 4
AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember
Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez.

None.

None.

None.

20. Authorize purchase of a new Haaker Equipment VVactor Model 2112 for the Coachella Sanitary District for
$484,657.99, and authorize the City Manager to sign the Purchase Agreement Proposal.

Motion:

Made by:
Seconded by:
Approved:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

To approve per staff recommendation

Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez
Councilmember Galarza
5-0, by the following roll call vote:

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember
Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez.

None.

None.

None.

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):

None.

PuUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

a) Ventura Gutierrez, in-person
b) Bernice Perezchica, in-person

c) Ismael Soliz, in-person

d) Melanie Gonzalez, via Zoom

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees.

City Manager’s Comments.

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez adjourned

the meeting at 7:56 p.m.

Res?ejt%:bmitt d,
L J

Angel peda
City Clerk

Page 46




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page: 1
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : ewfb EFT FOR WELLS FARGO BANK -!
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
592 3/9/2022 49486 BRC CONSTRUCTION 20221203 1/14/2022 OFFICE CONVERSION @ PEF 8,750.00
20221218 2/8/2022 OFFICE CONVERSIONS @ PE 8,750.00
20221219 2/8/2022 RPLC'D PLAYGROUND @ RAI 6,400.00
20221221 2/8/2022 INSTLL'D BOLLARDS @ DIST 414.00 24,314.00
593 3/9/2022 53391 BSK ASSOCIATES REO00969 11/3/2021 OCT2021 WATER SAMPLES 600.00
RF00111 2/1/2022  JAN2022 WASTEWATER SAM 2,591.00
RF00222 2/28/2022 FEB2022 WASTEWATER SAM 2,336.00
RF00113 2/7/2022 JAN2022 WATER SAMPLES 828.00
RF00223 2/28/2022 FEB2022 WATER SAMPLES 600.00 6,955.00
594 3/9/2022 54296 CAREERBUILDER GOVERNMICB04176143 2/28/2022 FEB2022/23 US FLEX DIRECT 2,620.00 2,620.00
595 3/9/2022 43672 DESERT VALLEY SERVICES IMN559909 1/25/2022 NITRILE GLOVES & DISINFEC 218.50
560833 2/2/2022 TOWEL & DISINFECTANT SPF 170.54 389.04
596 3/9/2022 51892 HERC RENTALS, INC. 32592615-001  2/3/2022  1/3-29 BOOM STRAIGHT RNT 4,516.02
32549821-001  12/27/2021 12/7-22 DUMP TRUCK RNTL 4,094.82
32608646-001  1/31/2022 1/11-26 SCISSOR LIFT RNTL 814.22 9,425.06
597 3/9/2022 00996 HOME DEPOT 4160104 2/22/2022 STANLEY 3PC WOOD CHISEL 92.83 92.83
598 3/9/2022 24600 LOPES HARDWARE 010294 1/12/2022 RESPIRATOR, PADLOCKS, Bl 640.36
010304 1/25/2022 SLEDGE HAMMER, 5GAL BUC 496.15 1,136.51
599 3/9/2022 53552 QUENCH USA, INC. INV03750697 2/1/2022 AC D347651, FEB2022 RNTL, 40.89
INV03718726 1/23/2022 AC D347652, FEB2022 RNTL, 35.89
INV03725506  2/1/2022 AC D347648, FEB2022 RNTL, 35.89 112.67
600 3/9/2022 32950 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, IN188003920 1/20/2022 1/18 OIL SVC 293.00 293.00
601 3/9/2022 48436 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC.50023284 2/25/2022 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 6,911.83 6,911.83
602 3/9/2022 54567 VARI SALES CORPORATION 90092213 2/14/2022 VARIDESK PROPLUS 36 386.61 386.61
603 3/9/2022 51697 WESTERN WATER WORKS S11403966-00 1/26/2022 DI HYD 6H DI CAPS 1 1/8 PEN 4.610.13
1404084-00 2/11/2022 BREAKOFF CHK LOW LEAD E 3,470.22
1403981-02 2/1/2022 BRZ B/N & RUBBER DROP-IN 2,209.80
1403981-01 1/31/2022 BRZ B/N, RUBBER DROP-IN N\ 1,245.08
1403973-00 1/27/2022 RUBBER DROP-IN MTR GSKT 491.55
1403981-00 1/28/2022 BRZ B/N 61.33
1404177-00 2/24/2022 RING NA GSKT 9.13 12,097.24
[ FOR WELLS FARGO BANK -SEPARATE CHECK: 64,733.79
Page 47 Page: 1




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
112990 3/9/2022 43873 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS 22/23 Mbrshp 12/2/2021 MBRSHP RNWL: ID #694583- 277.50 277.50
112991 3/9/2022 42837 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE24218929 1/23/2022 DRITECH TWILL SHIRTS W/ E 199.96
24286273 2/12/2022 POLY PRFMNCE SS POLOS V 102.13 302.09
112992 3/9/2022 46355 BEN CASTILLO PAINTING INC 1868 1/18/2022 INTERIOR PAINTING @ CORF 9,453.00
1903 2/8/2022 INTERIOR PAINTING @ CORF 1,300.00 10,753.00
112993 3/9/2022 53109 BIO SOCAL C11322B 1/31/2022 1/13 CLEANING/DISINFECTIN 1,347.50
C11322A 1/31/2022 1/13 CLEANING/DISINFECTIN 1,347.50 2,695.00
112994 3/9/2022 54157 BRAX COMPANY, INC. 38350 11/30/2021 FULL FLEX EXPOSED BOLT C 3,742.49 3,742.49
112995 3/9/2022 43862 BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC BPI1213522 1/25/2022 CHEMCHLOR SODIUM HYPO:! 2,409.41
BP1220990 2/23/2022 CHEMCHLOR SODIUM HYPOr 2,362.17
BP1220991 2/23/2022 CHEMCHLOR SODIUM HYPO: 2,362.17
BP1220992 2/23/2022 HYDROCHLORIC ACID, ETC 2,324.73 9,458.48
112996 3/9/2022 02048 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. S569624 2/23/2022 PAN FZ-55 [5-8365U 512/8 W1 9,219.70 9,219.70
112997 3/9/2022 08330 CITY OF INDIO 1455 2/9/2022  SIGNAL MOD. @ AVE 48/VAN 7,823.60 7,823.60
112998 3/9/2022 02273 CLAIREMONT EQUIPMENT 40267301 2/11/2022 2/8 REACH FORKLIFT RNTL 758.63 758.63
112999 3/9/2022 53220 COACHELLAACE HARDWARE3114/1 1/20/2022 SHELVING UNIT, TIMER OUTI 157.11
3237/1 2/11/2022 DISPOSER FOOD & ENTRY LI 143.53
3108/1 1/19/2022 CM SAE WRENCH SET, ETC 142.80
3261/1 2/17/2022 MEASURING WHEEL & D BAT 94 .59
2982/1 12/18/2021 ORIGNL TAPE & MASKING PA 54.33
2938/1 12/9/2021 REMVR PAINT, PAINT SCRAP 42 .37
31101 1/19/2022 PAINT SCRAPER & STRIPPEF 36.93
3230/1 2/9/2022 TAPE MEASURE & BOLT U 35.83
3125/1 1/22/2022 GRAFFITI REMOVER 26.08
3253/1 2/15/2022 SCR DW PH & MOUNTING TA 18.03
3231/1 2/9/2022 CABLE TIE 16.30
3191/1 2/2/2022 MARKING PAINT 15.20
2936/1 12/9/2021 CM WRENCH COMB 11.97
3245/1 2/14/2022 ALL PURPOSE SPRAYER & Ht 10.84
3214/1 2/7/2022 BRASS KEY 2.49 808.40
113000 3/9/2022 44959 COMPUTER CONSULTANTS, 134275 3/5/2022 FEB-MAR2022 IT SUPPORT 11,480.29 11,480.29
Page: 2

Page 48




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113001 3/9/2022 52375 CORE & MAIN LP Q287478 1/28/2022 HYDRANT MTRS 4,226.67
Q342607 2/16/2022 EZ-TAP MACHINE KIT 2,497.20
Q335023 2/16/2022 |IP BRZ SAD D/S SS STRAPS 938.94
Q287522 2/16/2022 LG HYD METER LOCK 885.50
Q347249 2/16/2022 DBL STRAP BRNZ SAD 192.06 8,740.37
113002 3/9/2022 43636 CPRS 2022-23 Mbrshp 1/25/2022 MBRSHP RNWL: ID #001927- 550.00 550.00
113003 3/9/2022 49858 CV PIPELINE CORP. S2810 2/4/2022 STORM DRAIN SYSTEM MAIN 2,430.00 2,430.00
113004 3/9/2022 48603 CV STRATEGIES 6600 1/31/2022 JAN2022 STRATEGIC COMM . 14,981.25 14,981.25
113005 3/9/2022 09950 CVWD Jan 2022 2/1/2022  CN 332543, JAN2022 WELL RI 27,823.30 27,823.30
113006 3/9/2022 09950 CVvWD Deposit 3/7/2022  PJCT ID SW0074- HYDRAULIC 10,000.00 10,000.00
113007 3/9/2022 02115 CWEA GL-3/31/22 1/26/2022 3/31 CERT RNWL CSM2+MBR 288.00
DF-3/31/22 1/26/2022 MBRSHP RNWL: D. FELIX #3£ 192.00 480.00
113008 3/9/2022 50103 D&H WATER SYSTEMS 12022-0109 1/28/2022 ACID 428.85 428.85
113009 3/9/2022 44718 DAMARA'S FLOWERS 8293 1/7/2022 FLORAL ARRANGEMENT: JO\ 150.00 150.00
113010 3/9/2022 01848 DAVE BANG ASSOCIATES, INCCA51045 1/31/2022 PLAYWORLD SLITHER SLIDE 6,511.29 6,511.29
113011 3/9/2022 54566 DECALS BY DESIGN, INC. 16130 9/28/2021 BUS SHELTER ADS 932.96 932.96
113012 3/9/2022 51867 DEMBOYZ, INC. 89628 1/27/2022 1/25 TRBLSHT/RPR'D GATE € 298.41 298.41
113013 3/9/2022 00118 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORSL220756 1/21/2022 OCT-DEC2021 TRAFFIC SIGN 1,791.95 1,791.95
113014 3/9/2022 42761 DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL HIN0438088 2/8/2022 FAC #FA0016786, EHP 3/31, 8 1,714.00 1,714.00
113015 3/9/2022 53389 DESERT CONCEPTS CONSTR21212 2/1/2022  1/31-2/1 EMRGNCY WTR LINE 21,505.00 21,505.00
113016 3/9/2022 01089 DESERT ELECTRIC SUPPLY S2941834.001 1/31/2022 FIN CHRGS 9.83 9.83
113017 3/9/2022 54461 DESERT GROWERS NURSER'08215 2/8/2022 OLEANDER PLANTS 43.50 43.50
113018 3/9/2022 54275 DESERT HOSE AND SUPPLY 16172 2/28/2022 25FT FEM CAM E/E 361.72 361.72
113019 3/9/2022 52970 DESERT POOL SPECIALISTS, 126228 2/1/2022 FEB2022 FOUNTAIN SVCS 400.00 400.00
113020 3/9/2022 49776 DESERT SEWER SUPPLY, INC23693 1/19/2022 COA SANITARY DISTRICT FR, 1,233.23 1,233.23
113021 3/9/2022 48359 DESERT STEEL SUPPLY 22029 2/2/2022 SQ TUBE 126.85 126.85
113022 3/9/2022 13700 DEWEY PEST CONTROL INC. 14877022 2/1/2022 AC1281218, FEB2022, 51251 [ 900.00
14877021 2/1/2022  AC1281215, FEB2022, SIERR# 301.00
14864950 2/1/2022  AC1450610, FEB2022, DE OR( 160.00
14857763 2/1/2022 AC103361, FEB2022, SENIOR 80.00
14864939 2/1/2022 AC1434611, FEB2022, DIST 3¢ 60.00 1,501.00
113023 3/9/2022 42442 DIRECTV 076184020X220; 2/3/2022 FEB2022 TV ACCESS FEE+PF 53.31 53.31
113024 3/9/2022 50645 DURAN'S LOCK & KEY 6175 1/26/2022 DUPLICATE KEYS FOR FILE C 48.00 48.00
Page 49 Page: 3




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113025 3/9/2022 14860 E. K. WOOD LUMBER COMPAI501624 1/19/2022 SAFE GRN MARK PAINT, ETC 62.45
501702 1/24/2022 SAFE GRN MARK PAINT, ETC 32.29
502091 2/9/2022 1" GALVANIZED COUPLING, E 22.69
501869 1/31/2022 ONE & TWO-SIDED KEYS 6.90 124.33
113026 3/9/2022 01518 F. BARAJAS UPHOLSTERY IN(316 2/3/2022 REUPHOLSTERED TRUCK SE 265.25 265.25
113027 3/9/2022 51141 FENCEWORKS RENTAL SYST130107 10/27/2021 10/11-11/1 TEMP FENCE RNTI 3,385.90
130102 10/27/2021 10/11-11/1 TEMP FENCE RNTI 1,996.48
130104 10/27/2021 10/11-11/1 TEMP FENCE RNTI 1,804.48
130103 10/27/2021 10/11-11/1 TEMP FENCE RNTI 1,775.22
130577 1/17/2022 6MO TEMP FENCE RNTL @ G 362.90 9,324.98
113028 3/9/2022 44042 GALLEGOS, GUSTAVO Boot Reimb 3/1/2022 REIMBURSEMENT FOR WOR 209.88
Edu Reimb 3/1/2022  FY21/22 EDUCATION REIMBU 80.00 289.88
113029 3/9/2022 45757 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI4030276 3/7/2022 RLCT OH DSTRBTN LINES TC 180,345.52 180,345.52
113030 3/9/2022 45757 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI4031291 3/7/2022 CONVERT TO UG @ 1293 6Tt 114,058.70 114,058.70
113031 3/9/2022 45757 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI4031292 3/7/2022 CONVERT TO UG @ 1377 6Tt 24 567.26 24 567.26
113032 3/9/2022 45108 IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPL'4983105-00 2/1/2022 HUNTER MP ROTATOR, ETC 125.38
4984969-00 2/2/2022 PINK MARKING FLAGS, GREE 54.79
4985748-00 2/3/2022  30GAL TRASH CAN W/ SCOO 54.36
4978610-00 1/28/2022 DRIPNETA MALE ADAPTER 9.04 243.57
113033 3/9/2022 53801 INFOSEND, INC. 208177 2/28/2022 FEB2022 UTILITY BILLING SV 4,793.02 4,793.02
113034 3/9/2022 52738 JNS MEDIA SPECIALISTS 8690 10/28/2021 10/28 ARPA EVENT 1,645.92
8737 11/16/2021 OCT2021 AD SVCS (KUNAFM 1,000.00 2,645.92
113035 3/9/2022 48293 KOA CORPORATION JB92071-20 2/16/2022 PE1/30 AVE 50 PS&E 10,986.20 10,986.20
113036 3/9/2022 54569 LED GLOBAL SUPPLY INC. 15480 3/2/2022 LED BOLLARD SOLAR POWE 2,436.80 2,436.80
113037 3/9/2022 50501 LIVESCAN MGMT GROUP, INC02112022COC  2/11/2022 INSTLL'N OF DECALS @ LIBR 205.50 205.50
113038 3/9/2022 49098 MCFADDEN ARCHITECTS 2798 2/1/2022 COACHELLA SENIOR CENTEI 14,950.00 14,950.00
113039 3/9/2022 25900 MEREDITH & SIMPSON CONS220161 1/31/2022 TRBLSHT SUMP PUMP, ETC ( 280.00 280.00
113040 3/9/2022 42240 MULTI W. SYSTEMS, INC. 32230263 1/28/2022 30' CORD 1,702.68 1,702.68
113041 3/9/2022 49482 NAPAAUTO PARTS 228337 2/14/2022 PURPLE POWER 5GAL 38.81
226753 2/2/2022 BEARING 9.70 48.51
Page: 4

Page 50




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113042 3/9/2022 42112 NRO ENGINEERING 02-22-011 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, FOUNTAINHE. 2,684.50
02-22-014 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, FOUNTAINHE. 1,606.50
02-22-009 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, 52300 ENTER 911.75
02-22-010 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, 52300 ENTER 525.00
02-22-012 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, FOUNTAINHE 525.00
02-22-013 1/31/2022 PE1/31 PLNCK, TR 32074:#13! 225.75 6,478.50
113043 3/9/2022 47192 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2855-411624 2/7/2022 BLOWER RESTR 40.50
2855-410349 2/3/2022  OIL FILTER & BLOWER RESTI 30.49
2855-412249 2/9/2022 WINTER BLADE 21.53
2855-412090 2/8/2022 AIR & OIL FILTERS 20.43
2855-410468 2/3/2022 OIL FILTER 3.58 116.53
113044 3/9/2022 01736 PALM SPRINGS PUMP, INC. 22-4063 1/13/2022 1/6 INSTLL'D HP 404TP 1800 F 11,716.00
22-4099 2/9/2022 1/24 SVC CALL @ WELL #18 125.00 11,841.00
113045 3/9/2022 49989 PAUL ASSOCIATES 85744 1/31/2022 BUSINESS CARDS: A. ALARC 185.31 185.31
113046 3/9/2022 46837 PRECISION BACKFLOW PBF161790 1/19/2022 BACKFLOW TESTING 3,325.00 3,325.00
113047 3/9/2022 42759 PROPER SOLUTIONS, INC. 12932 2/25/2022 WE 2/25: S. CARLOS RAMIRE 468.00 468.00
113048 3/9/2022 53898 QUADIENT, INC. 40185615 2/17/2022 BRUSH & SPONGE KIT 28.28 28.28
113049 3/9/2022 52306 QUINN COMPANY 20589901 2/8/2022  1/12-2/9 VACUUM TRAILER R! 7,173.19 7,173.19
113050 3/9/2022 42443 RDO EQUIPMENT CO. P6847045 2/8/2022  PIN & BUSHING 157.19 157.19
113051 3/9/2022 54500 RELIABLE TRANSLATIONS CC20923 1/18/2022 1/18 DOCUMENT TRANSLATI( 94.82 94.82
Page 51 Page: 5




apChkLst Check List Page: ftem 6.

03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

113052 3/9/2022 53736 RG2 MANAGEMENT LLC 2957 3/2/2022 WE 2/27: L. VALENZUELA 420.84

2923 2/1/2022  WE 1/30: O. ORTIZ JR 216.00

2918 2/1/2022  WE 1/30: M. VILLANUEVA 108.00

2917 2/1/2022  WE 1/30: A. REYES+R. VALEN 2,803.50

2936 2/16/2022 WE 2/13: A. REYES+R. VALEN 2,764.13

2928 2/8/2022 WE 2/6: A. REYES+R. VALENC 2,701.13

2950 2/23/2022 WE 2/20: A. REYES+R. VALEN 2,701.13

2955 3/2/2022  WE 2/27: A. REYES+R. VALEN 2,378.26

2922 2/1/2022 WE 1/30: F. HERNANDEZ 1,527.75

2958 3/2/2022  WE 2/27: V. CORDOVA 1,467.75

2939 2/16/2022 WE 2/13: F. HERNANDEZ 1,417.50

2925 2/8/2022 WE 2/6: F. HERNANDEZ 1,338.75

2947 2/23/2022 WE 2/20: F. HERNANDEZ 1,102.50

2956 3/2/2022 WE 2/27: K. MEDINA 810.00

2920 2/1/2022  WE 1/30: L. VALENZUELA 790.02

2935 2/16/2022 WE 2/13: F. SILVA+A. REYES 780.00

2921 2/1/2022  WE 1/30: F. SILVA+A. REYES 768.00

2929 2/8/2022 WE 2/6: F. SILVA+A. REYES 768.00

2951 2/23/2022 WE 2/20: F. SILVA+A. REYES 768.00

2938 2/16/2022 WE 2/13: L. VALENZUELA 728.28

2926 2/8/2022 WE 2/6: L. VALENZUELA 726.39
2948 2/23/2022 WE 2/20: L. VALENZUELA 715.05 27,800.98
113053 3/9/2022 44161 ROBERT HALF 59484416 2/24/2022 WE 2/18: P. ARRIAGA 641.60 641.60
113054 3/9/2022 52991 S & D CAR WASH MANAGEMEARB133075 1/31/2022 JAN2022 CAR WASH SERVICI 328.53 328.53
113055 3/9/2022 52049 SEECLICKFIX 219180 1/17/2022 JAN2022/23 ANALYZE+CONNI 21,877.08 21,877.08
113056 3/9/2022 47319 SPARKLETTS 9467308 012422 1/24/2022 JAN2022 WATER @ SANITAR 198.13 198.13

Page 52 Page: 6




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113057 3/9/2022 52595 STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT 7349909533-0-1 2/8/2022  STPLS HL8000 LAT 36IN DWR 567.85
7348985483-0-1 1/27/2022 SPLS REC COPY CS, TREDR 367.51
7345265290-0-1 12/6/2021 HD VIEW BINDER 2IN, SHARF 297.49
7348984388-0-1 1/26/2022 PTD600, RECORD BOOK, LEC 290.62
7350420371-0-1 2/15/2022 ALL-IN-ONE ORG MESH, ORC 128.09
7349970698-0-1 2/9/2022 CARPET CHAIRMAT BLK, WP: 94.93
7349963607-0-1 2/9/2022 HP 62XL HY BLACK INK, ETC 93.30
7349430163-0-1 2/2/2022 HP 63XL HYBLK/63 TRI-CLR 2 59.99
7350374985-0-1 2/15/2022 8-TAB STYLE EDGE DIVIDER, 54 .88
7348985483-0-3 1/27/2022 TEAR RESISTANT ENVELOPE 43.27
7348985483-0-4 1/27/2022 TEAR RESISTANT ENVELOPE 42 .24
7348320069-0-3 1/24/2022 4FT CHRG LGHTNG CABLE 37.94
7349430163-0-3 2/2/2022 PLUG ML TUBE KFT 6.17
7349430163-0-2 2/7/2022 BOFATONER RECYCLING BC 0.01 2,084.29
113058 3/9/2022 54173 SWANA 2023-1732048 2/1/2022 MAY2022/23 MBRSHP RNWL.: 253.00 253.00
113059 3/9/2022 36300 SWRCB FEES WD-0191838 12/8/2021 #7A330104032, FY21/22 WDR 23,783.00 23,783.00
113060 3/9/2022 54550 TBU INC. 47710 2/28/2022 2/25 EMERGENCY LEAK REP/ 8,013.78 8,013.78
113061 3/9/2022 37600 THE DESERT SUN PUBLISHIN0004243434 11/30/2021 NOV2021 PUBLISHED ADS 4,215.20 4,215.20
113062 3/9/2022 38250 TOPS N BARRICADES 1092284 2/7/2022  1/28-2/7 CHNGBLE MSG SIGN 2,535.00 2,535.00
113063 3/9/2022 44978 TRI-STATE MATERIALS, INC. 99737 1/28/2022 4"-8" COPPER CANYON 7,019.42
99637 1/26/2022 4"-8" COPPER CANYON 1,999.42 9,018.84
113064 3/9/2022 39640 VALLEY LOCK & SAFE BW6383488 1/17/2022 CYBER LOCK KEY, TIP & BRL 3,055.88 3,055.88
113065 3/9/2022 53173 VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INCOSV000002675% 2/1/2022  JAN2022 GPS MONITORING ¢ 582.84 582.84
113066 3/9/2022 44966 VERIZON WIRELESS 9900159948 212212022 AC571164685-00001, 1/23-2/2: 45.80 45.80
113067 3/9/2022 44775 VISTA PAINT CORPORATION 2022-399526-00 2/9/2022 RAGS RECYCLED WHITE 220.06 220.06
113068 3/9/2022 54366 VITA, INC. 46339 2/8/2022 WOOD DBL BAR FREESTANC 1,034.55 1,034.55
113069 3/9/2022 44203 WEST COAST SAND & GRAVE452407 1/13/2022 WASHED CONCRETE SAND 1,188.61
419814 9/30/2021 WASHED CONCRETE SAND 1,185.57 2,374.18
113070 3/9/2022 48364 WEST COAST TURF INV987342 1/22/2022 TIFWAY Il OS 625.32
INV985606 1/8/2022  TIFWAY Il OS 293.63 918.95
113071 3/9/2022 54433 WEX ENTERPRISE EXXONMC78794211 2/23/2022 ACC 0496-00-726338-7, 1/24-2 228.09 228.09
113072 3/9/2022 54464 WHITE CAP, L.P. 50018044235  2/23/2022 1/2"M18 FUEL HAMMER DRIL 331.46
50018036292  2/22/2022 TORQUE WRENCH MICRO AL 291.75 623.21
113073 3/9/2022 54568 WTP EQUIPMENT CORP. 974-22 1/28/2022 REPLACEMENT UHMW LINEF 1,665.00 1,665.00
113074 3/9/2022 48971 XPRESS GRAPHICS & PRINTII21-43609 10/5/2021 AHSC GOHUMAN POLE BANM 4,762.22 4,762.22
Page 53 Page: 7




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113075 3/9/2022 42100 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES INC 95707 2/4/2022 STOP SIGN 2,240.67
95709 2/4/2022 BIKE ROUTE & BIKE LANE SY 1,824.27
95708 2/4/2022 REFLECTIVE DOTS 1,357.33
95706 2/4/2022 KEEP RIGHT SYM 1,073.23
95679 1/31/2022 STREET SIGNS (TULIPAN ST 460.39
95644 1/28/2022 CUT FACE 139.71 7,095.60
Sub total for WELLS FARGO BANK: 679,925.75
Page 54 Page: 8




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/08/2022 2:37:04PM City of Coachella
98 checks in this report. Grand Total All Checks: 744 659.54
Date: March 9, 2022
Finance Director: Nathan Statham
Page: 9

Page 55




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page: 1
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : ewfb EFT FOR WELLS FARGO BANK -
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
604 3/16/2022 45929 BECK OIL, INC. 51477CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 ENG DEPT FUEL 160.08
51482CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 STREETS DEPT FUEL 659.92
51484CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 WATER DEPT FUEL 712.99
51487CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 PARKS DEPT FUEL 131.64
51509CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 VEHICLE MAINT DEPT 662.82
51521CL 2/28/2022 PEZ2/28 CODE ENF DEPT FUE 289.80
51533CL 2/28/2022 PE2/28 SANITARY DEPT FUEL 1,042.85
51541CL 2/28/2022 PEZ2/28 BLDG MAINT DEPT FL 97.32
491903 2/10/2022 SHELL GADUS S2 HS COUPL 66.45 3,823.87
605 3/16/2022 43462 BEST BEST & KRIEGER, LLP 928116 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00810, LABOF 192.80
928119 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00819, CODE 1,033.20
928120 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00820, ENVIR! 992.90
928121 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00835, REAL E 735.00
928122 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00840, CANN/ 3,452.00
928100 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00844, CHROI 216.80
928101 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00851, GLENF 324 .85
928123 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237, GENERAL RE 32,704.90
928115 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00231, G. THC 2,116.80
928117 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00237, SPOTL 441.00
928102 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00857, RENEV 588.00
928103 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00858, COAW 4,963.87
928104 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00868, TRAVE 506.65
928105 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00869, AFFOF 646.80
928107 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00870, COVID 1,019.90
928118 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00239, 52138 | 65.20
928106 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00240, 52156 ° 564 .60
928108 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00445, DESEF 6,741.70
928110 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00447, ADV. C 298.00
928111 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00448, HWAN:! 117.60
928113 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00450, GLENF 7,309.90
928109 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00872, SUCCE 2,469.60
928112 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.00873, SURPL 970.20
928114 2/28/2022 PE1/31, #80237.03004, AV50 P 1,413.75 69,886.02
Page 56 Page: 1




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : ewfb EFT FOR WELLS FARGO BANK -! (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
606 3/16/2022 49486 BRC CONSTRUCTION 202212226 2/28/2022 INSTLL'D GATES/SIDE PANEL 5,400.00
202212227 2/28/2022 RPLC'D FENCE PANELS @ DI 1,793.00
202212228 2/28/2022 RPLC'D FENCE POSTS/BRAC 812.00 8,005.00
607 3/16/2022 43672 DESERT VALLEY SERVICES IM561510 2/9/2022 NAPKIN DISP, TISSUE TOILE1 1,165.25
561511 2/9/2022  TISSUE TOILET & URINAL SC 443.42
562338 2/16/2022 CUP PL SOFT PET 240Z CLE; 162.75
563165 2/23/2022 PAD UTILITY HOLDER, HAND 459.37
563170 2/23/2022 WOOD HANDLE & MOP WET 8.78 2,239.57
608 3/16/2022 53799 ENTERPRISE FM TRUST FBN4405416 2/3/2022 FEB2022 LEASE CHRGS ('20/' 10,890.85 10,890.85
609 3/16/2022 00207 GRAINGER INC 9192257567 1/26/2022 DIAPHRAGM PUMP 1,044 .61
9192631639 1/26/2022 DRIVERS GLOVES 120.28
9194237724 1/28/2022 GEL PENS 93.31
9213739825 2/15/2022 INNER WAIST BELT 15.05 1,273.25
610 3/16/2022 51892 HERC RENTALS, INC. 32669803-001  2/14/2022 2/14 SOD CUTTER RNTL 90.08
32683631-001  2/23/2022 2/17-23 SOD CUTTER RNTL 300.22 390.30
611 3/16/2022 00996 HOME DEPOT 2013296 2/24/2022 SS BIRD SPIKE, CAULK GUN, 110.01
5014171 3/3/2022 MED DESIGNER HOOKS, MOI 72.98
8104311 2/28/2022 GRACO MAGNUM X7 550.24 733.23
612 3/16/2022 24600 LOPES HARDWARE 010365 3/3/2022 BROOM, BOTTLES, EXTENSI( 189.84
010460 3/7/2022 KEYS & TAGS 522 195.06
613 3/16/2022 32950 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, IN88091357 2/4/2022 2/2 SVC 280.10 280.10
614 3/16/2022 52924 SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610279802 2/14/2022 JAN2022 TRAFFIC SIGNAL M/ 1,812.80
5620039020 2/15/2022 JAN2022 TRAFFIC SIGNAL C# 747210 9,284.90
615 3/16/2022 53596 XTREME HEATING AND AIR 2197 10/28/2021 RPLC'D DIFFUSER @ PERMIT 220.00 220.00
 FOR WELLS FARGO BANK -SEPARATE CHECK: 107,222.15
Page 57 Page: 2




apChkLst Check List Page: [ "™ ®
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113076 3/16/2022 48977 ADT COMMERCIAL 143967896 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/ESUITE/C 221.85
143967897 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 EQUIP LSE/EXT ¢ 459.68
143967898 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 EQUIP LSE/EXT ¢ 1,497.75
143990154 2/1/2022 DC-FB2022 CELL/ESUITE/ALA -189.66
143990155 2/1/2022 DC-FB2022 CELL BACKUP/FIF -222.88
143967878 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 193.29
143967879 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 228.89
143967880 2/1/2022 MAR2022 ALARM/EXT SVC Pf 1,091.89
143967881 2/1/2022  MA-MY2022 EQUIP LSE/EXT ¢ 47213
143967882 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 FIRE, 87101 AVE 148.26
143967883 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM, 87101 Av 92.67
143967884 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 EQUIP LSE/EXT ¢ 254.06
143967885 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM, 87075 Av 145.55
143967886 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 FIRE/ALARM, 870 203.88
143967887 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 FIRE, COMMUNIT 236.52
143967888 2/1/2022 MAR2022 CELL/EXT SVC PRC 119.91
143967889 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 205.13
143967890 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 215.10
143967891 2/1/2022  MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 196.30
143967892 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 208.56
143967893 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/EXT SVC 196.30
143967894 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM/PRIME Ct 201.00
143967895 2/1/2022 MA-MY2022 ALARM, BGDMA ¢ 145.55 6,321.73
113077 3/16/2022 01436 AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSE75748 2/28/2022 FEB2022 BLOOD DRAW 61.22
75780 3/8/2022 FEB2022 BLOOD DRAWS 122.44 183.66
113078 3/16/2022 54503 AVI TECH 1987 2/15/2022 INSTLL'D HDR HDMI SPLITTE 604.95 604.95
113079 3/16/2022 46355 BEN CASTILLO PAINTING INC 1864 2/28/2022 INTERIOR PAINTING @ CORF 1,300.00
1865 2/28/2022 INTERIOR PAINTING @ CORF 1,300.00
1866 2/28/2022 INTERIOR PAINTING @ CORF 1,300.00 3,900.00
113080 3/16/2022 02187 BENLO R.V. I 13188 2/28/2022 7GAL PROPANE 32.37
13194 3/3/2022 9.7GAL PROPANE 44 83 77.20
113081 3/16/2022 00836 BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 42421 2/18/2022 11/22, 1/3+18+31 LAB SERVIC 1,001.00 1,001.00
113082 3/16/2022 54517 BLACK KNIGHT TECHNOLOGI10194147 12/20/2021 DC-JA2022 SITEXPRO SBSCF 250.00 250.00
113083 3/16/2022 44494 BURRTEC WASTE & RECYCLIBD 2/1/22 2/1/2022  AC 44-BS 405340, 85075 AVE : 89.98 89.98
113084 3/16/2022 50471 CASTILLO, VICTOR Boot Reimb 3/8/2022 REIMBURSEMENT FOR WOR 250.00 250.00
Page 58 Page: 3




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113085 3/16/2022 02048 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. S842291 3/1/2022  PANASONIC KV-S1057C COL( 1,062.76 1,062.76
113086 3/16/2022 44725 CLEANSTREET 102491CS 2/28/2022 2/16 SPECIAL SWEEP SVCS 1,208.70 1,208.70
113087 3/16/2022 53220 COACHELLAACE HARDWARE3150/1 1/27/2022 CHAIN CHAINSAW 10", ETC 44 .55

3154/1 1/27/2022 SPADE TRENCHING 3" W/ BLI 90.82

317211 1/31/2022 DMV PVC CAP FLEX 4" 8.26

32501 2/14/2022 CONCRETE CRACK FILLER 16.30

32511 2/14/2022 MODIFIED THIN-SET GRY 32.60

3269/1 2/17/2022 GRILL BRUSH 9.77

33071 2/26/2022 CM WET/DRY 12GAL 6HP, ET 157.21

3328/1 3/3/2022 SHOWERHEAD, SURGE PRO 78.26

33311 3/3/2022 PIPE CAP 1/2" BRASS LF 7.06

3256/1 2/16/2022 RECIP BLD 14/18 TPI 6", ETC 60.87

32591 2/16/2022 KTCH FAUCET 1H PLDWN CF 163.11

3264/1 2/17/2022 SANITZ & DEODRZ FRESH, E 78.20

3283/1 2/22/2022 PLATINUM B&C 1GAL 15.76

3311/1 2/28/2022 SPLY FCT 9.77

33141 2/28/2022 SPLY FCT -9.77 762.77
113088 3/16/2022 54137 CONSERVE LANDCARE LLC 34319 9/30/2021 9/24 LNDSCPE ENHANCEMELN 3,483.00

34822 10/1/2021 10/1 RPR'D IRRGTN @ DIST 1 116.00

49422 12/28/2021 12/17 LNDSCPE ENHANCEME 5401.04

49423 12/28/2021 12/3 RPR'D IRRGTN @ DIST 1 281.81

49424 12/28/2021 12/6 RPR'D IRRGTN @ DIST 2 173.69

49425 12/28/2021 12/13 RPR'D IRRGTN @ DIST 374.38

49426 12/28/2021 12/24 RPR'D IRRGTN @ DIST 728.18

49566 12/29/2021 12/20 LNDSCPE ENHANCEME 1,500.00

49570 12/29/2021 12/27 TREE SVCS @ VARIOU: 2,200.00

49571 12/29/2021 12/27 TREE SVCS @ DIST 25 1,100.00

49572 12/29/2021 12/27 TREE SVC @ DIST 20 1,100.00 16,458.10
113089 3/16/2022 01924 CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL3298-1009774  2/9/2022 CORN BULB 3CCT+3PWR SE 599.54

5725-1040531  2/16/2022 16W A LAMP 64.91

5725-1040826  2/18/2022 300W TRI-TAP DIRECT BURIA 414 .84 1,079.29
113090 3/16/2022 00214 CORONET CONCRETE PRODM151081 2/1/2022 6.0 SACK EQ 60/40 FA, ETC 579.04 579.04
113091 3/16/2022 53085 COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE INV-00177572  2/24/2022 SUPP+SPECIAL EVENT DEPC 414.00 414.00
113092 3/16/2022 43636 CPRS 2022-23 Mbrshp 2/24/2022 MBRSHP RNWL: ID #135908-" 145.00 145.00

Page: 4

Page 59




apChkLst Check List Page: Item 6.
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113093 3/16/2022 49858 CV PIPELINE CORP. S2828 2/25/2022 STORM DRAIN SYSTEM MAIN 7,560.00
S2833 2/28/2022 STORM DRAIN SYSTEM MAIN 2,160.00 9,720.00
113094 3/16/2022 02115 CWEA PS-4/30/22 2/22/2022 MBRSHP RNWL: P. SUSTAITA 192.00 192.00
113095 3/16/2022 50103 D&H WATER SYSTEMS 12022-0248 2/18/2022 BM2131-68 LIQUID IODATE 140.23 140.23
113096 3/16/2022 12870 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 567515 3/2/2022 FEB2022 FINGERPRINTS 49.00 49.00
113097 3/16/2022 01089 DESERT ELECTRIC SUPPLY S2947314.001 2/16/2022 MOG HPS LAMP 417.75 417.75
113098 3/16/2022 13300 DESERT FIRE EXTINGUISHER11717085 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ BAGDC 100.01
11717107 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ RLF PA 74.50
11717193 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ PERMI 223.66
11716869 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ 15156~ 531.02
11716928 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ LIBRAF 278.53
11716969 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ SENIOI 310.46
11717014 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ YOUTH 100.01
11717043 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ BGDM/ 317.40
11717070 2/16/2022 2/8 ANNUAL MAINT @ BOXIN¢ 125.51 2,061.10
113099 3/16/2022 48359 DESERT STEEL SUPPLY 22089 2/15/2022 3X4.1X20' CHANNEL 148.99 148.99
113100 3/16/2022 51944 EFAX CORPORATE 3964203 2/28/2022 FEB2022 FAX SERVICES 202.34 202.34
113101 3/16/2022 44088 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, IM075040 2/16/2022 VB & TUBE ASSY 43.27 43.27
113102 3/16/2022 51604 FRONTIER 3982369-FB22 2/25/2022 760/398-2369, 2/25/22 61.60 61.60
113103 3/16/2022 51494 GARDA CL WEST, INC. 10682451 3/1/2022 MAR2022 ARMORED TRANSF 1,074.01
10682458 3/1/2022 MAR2022 CASHLINK MAINTEI 1,346.24 2,420.25
113104 3/16/2022 20450 IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRI50035755-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50035755, 1/27-2/25, PUMP 64.22
50371785-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50371785, 1/27-2/25, LIFT £ 660.67
50408460-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50408460, 1/27-2/25, WELL 6,009.41
50434217-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50434217, 1/127-2/25 54.16
50459795-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50459795, 1/27-2/25 53.03
50459796-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50459796, 1/27-2/25 103.28
50459819-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50459819, 1/27-2/25 87.07
50522793-FB22 3/1/2022 AC50522793, 1/27-2/24, SCAD 13.96 7,045.80
113105 3/16/2022 45108 IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPL'4992715-00 2/11/2022 FERT BEST EVERGREEN 2,025.56 2,025.56
113106 3/16/2022 37000 INLAND POWER EQUIPMENT 136333 2/23/2022 SVC'D/RPLC'D PARTS ON GE 1,202.28 1,202.28
113107 3/16/2022 51600 IRC, INC. 2022020041 2/1/2022 FEB2022 PRE-EMPLOYMENT 187.85 187.85
113108 3/16/2022 54570 J.C. TUCKMAR, INC. COC001 2/21/2022 REPLACEMENT OF DOMESTI 57,827.64 57,827.64
113109 3/16/2022 42223 J.L. WINGERT CO. 3018822 2/8/2022 LMI 1.8 FLUORO LIQUIFRAM 652.07 652.07
113110 3/16/2022 52906 JOHNSON CONTROLS SECUF36987311 2/12/2022 3/1-5/31 ALARM @ 1515 6TH ¢ 1,370.22 1,370.22
Page 60 Page: 5




apChkLst Check List Page:| "™ ®
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)

Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113111 3/16/2022 52420 JONES BROS CONSTRUCTIOI3686 #2 2/28/2022 PE2/28 48TH & HARRISON SE 198,382.86 198,382.86
113112 3/16/2022 47328 KONICA MINOLTA 39558847 3/2/2022  ACC 061-0042081-000, MAR2( 67.43 67.43
113113 3/16/2022 52037 LILBURN CORPORATION 22-0321 3/3/2022  1/3-2/27 SVCS: KPC COACHE! 840.00 840.00
113114 3/16/2022 50501 LIVESCAN MGMT GROUP, INC08282022COC 2/28/2022 COROPLAST INSERTS FOR \ 652.50 652.50
113115 3/16/2022 47192 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2855-412270 2/9/2022  F/P MOD ASM & FUEL FILTER 170.47

2855-412294 2/9/2022 RADIATOR 162.49

2855-414157 2/15/2022 SEMI-MET PAD 44 .64

2855-414435 2/16/2022 DISC PAD SET, OIL & AIR FIL1 81.13

2855-414744 2/17/2022 DISC PAD SET 35.94

2855-416924 2/24/2022 CABIN FILTER 41.02 535.69
113116 3/16/2022 49099 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY 100400652607 1/17/2022 FB-JL2022 MAINT SVCS: COR 1,772.94 1,772.94
113117 3/16/2022 09800 PERMA WC 2021-22/4  3/14/2022 2021-22 WORKERS' COMP Dt 96,855.00 96,855.00
113118 3/16/2022 02028 PETE'S ROAD SERVICE, INC. 562856-00 2/16/2022 MOUNT/BALANCE NEW TIRE: 384.09

564474-00 2/16/2022 ALIGNMENT 136.33

564831-00 2/17/2022 FLAT REPAIR 31.61

566411-00 2/28/2022 MOUNT/BALANCE NEW TIRE 188.94

566418-00 2/24/2022 MOUNT/BALANCE NEW TIRE 150.12 891.09
113119 3/16/2022 42759 PROPER SOLUTIONS, INC. 12956 3/4/2022 WE 3/4: S. CARLOS RAMIREZ 504.00 504.00
113120 3/16/2022 52344 QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INCCD 3/13/22 3/13/2022 FEB2022 POSTAGE BY PHON 1,000.00 1,000.00
113121 3/16/2022 52470 R & R TOWING 56198 1/28/2022 1/28 TOWING: 51593 CESAR ¢ 271.00

56356 2/5/2022  2/5 TOWING: 49241 GRPFRT | 271.00 542.00
113122 3/16/2022 54500 RELIABLE TRANSLATIONS CC21198 2/19/2022 2/19 CC MTG AGENDA TRAN¢ 125.28

21217 2/23/2022 2/23 CC MTG SVCS 588.00

21273 3/2/2022  3/2 PLANNING COMM MTG S\ 490.00

21307 3/7/2022  3/7 CC MTG AGENDA TRANSI 143.84

21146 2/15/2022 2/15 PARK & REC MTG SVCS 147.00

21316 3/7/2022  3/7 PLANNING COMM MTG S\ 490.00

21333 3/9/2022  3/9 DOCUMENT TRANSLATIO 75.00 2,059.12

Page 61 Page: 6




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
Bank : wfb WELLS FARGO BANK (Continued)
Check # Date Vendor Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total
113123 3/16/2022 53736 RG2 MANAGEMENT LLC 2886 1/11/2022 WE 1/9: F. SILVA+A. REYES 786.00
2887 1/11/2022 WE 1/9: F. HERNANDEZ 1,140.75
2899 1/19/2022 WE 1/16: F. SILVA+A. REYES 804.00
2901 1/19/2022 WE 1/16: F. HERNANDEZ 884 .25
2904 1/25/2022 WE 1/23: F. HERNANDEZ 972.00
2905 1/25/2022 WE 1/23: F. SILVA+A. REYES 576.00
2965 3/8/2022 WE 3/6: L. VALENZUELA 655.83
2967 3/8/2022 WE 3/6: A. REYES+R. VALENC 2,968.88 8,787.71
113124 3/16/2022 44161 ROBERT HALF 59529682 3/3/2022 WE 2/25: P. ARRIAGA 962.40
59569422 3/9/2022  WE 3/4: P. ARRIAGA 1,283.20 2,245.60
113125 3/16/2022 47658 RUIZVAL. PEST CONTROL 118 2/28/2022 FEB2022 SVCS @ FIRE STATI 65.00 65.00
113126 3/16/2022 33430 SAV-ON CARPETS 26694 1/18/2022 INSTLL'D CARPET/VINYL FLO 5,221.44 5,221.44
113127 3/16/2022 47319 SPARKLETTS 9467308 022422 2/24/2022 FEB2022 WATER @ SANITAR 148.18 148.18
113128 3/16/2022 00102 SUNLINE TRANSIT AGENCY INV05734 1/31/2022 JAN2022 CNG FUEL 745.09 745.09
113129 3/16/2022 53743 SUSTAITA, JR., PEDRO Cert Rnwil 2/24/2022 REIMB: GRD Il CERT RNWL, E 150.00 150.00
113130 3/16/2022 52125 TAG/AMS, INC. 2807814 3/8/2022 2022 ANNUAL RENEWAL FEE 175.00 175.00
113131 3/16/2022 37600 THE DESERT SUN PUBLISHIN0004439093 2/28/2022 FEB2022 PUBLISHED ADS 611.60 611.60
113132 3/16/2022 42289 TIME WARNER CABLE 0037022022822 2/28/2022 AC 8448 20 899 0037022, MAFR 2,302.15 2,302.15
113133 3/16/2022 44978 TRI-STATE MATERIALS, INC. 99781 2/2/2022  4"-8" COPPER CANYON 1,445 .43 1,445.43
113134 3/16/2022 38800 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALI120220112 2/1/2022  JAN2022- 59 NEW TICKETS+L 107.35 107.35
113135 3/16/2022 44775 VISTA PAINT CORPORATION 2022-388106-00 2/1/2022 COVERALL EXT FLAT DEEP E 585.81
2022-441213-00 3/10/2022 COVERALL EXT FLAT WHITE 781.09 1,366.90
113136 3/16/2022 49778 WEST COAST ARBORIST, INC179586 11/15/2021 PE11/15 TREE MAINT @ PARF} 1,500.00
182348 1/31/2022 PE1/31 TREE MAINT @ LLMD 9,768.00
183028 2/15/2022 PE2/15 TREE MAINT @ PARK: 4,012.00 15,280.00
113137 3/16/2022 48364 WEST COAST TURF INV987608 1/25/2022 TIFWAY Il OS 543.75
INV989596 2/14/2022 TIFWAY 419 OS 543.75 1,087.50
113138 3/16/2022 48971 XPRESS GRAPHICS & PRINTII22-45896 2/20/2022 VETERAN POLE BANNER 153.76 153.76
113139 3/16/2022 42100 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES INC 95842 2/16/2022 3/8" STEEL DRIVE RIVET, ETC 1,133.72
95843 2/16/2022 30" HD ANCHOR 1,769.58 2,903.30
Sub total for WELLS FARGO BANK: 467,054.77
Page 62 Page: 7




Item 6.

apChkLst Check List Page:
03/16/2022 7:59:49AM City of Coachella
76 checks in this report. Grand Total All Checks: 574,276.92
Date: March 16, 2022
L
Finance Director: Nathan Statham
Page: 8

Page 63




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution No. 2022-29, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Coachella to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022/23, Funded by SB 1:
Road Repair and Accountability Act.

Iltem 7.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to adopt Resolution No. 2022-29, A Resolution of the City Council
of the City of Coachella to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022/23, Funded by SB 1:
Road Repair and Accountability Act.

BACKGROUND:

On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes 2017),
which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. The purpose and intention
of the Act is to address basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety needs on both
the state highway and local streets and road systems, as well as provide transit assistance.

Prior to the passage of SB 1, cities and counties were delaying or canceling projects and
preparing to lay off staff. Due to lack of funding, basic maintenance of the local streets and road
system, repair and replacement of bridges, safety improvements and multi-modal enhancements
were all at risk.

The new transportation bill will provide cities and counties an opportunity to catch up on years
of unfunded maintenance needs that have plagued our roadways for years. Maintenance and
rehabilitation projects will extend the service life of our local streets, roads and bridges. Cities
and Counties will also use SB 1 funds for complete streets projects, increasing mobility options
for residents, and will employ, to the extent possible green technologies, materials and methods
to reduce impacts to the environment from transportation projects.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

SB 1 includes historic accountability and transparency measures. Cities and counties will adopt
project lists at the start of every Fiscal Year and also provide year end reporting on completed
projects.

Page 64




The City of Coachella is proposing the following projects as follows:

Proposed Project 1: Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 18

Project Description: Improve the street pavement and resurfacing within the Escondida
Pointe neighborhood and various locations throughout the City including, but not limited
to, Avenue 50, Avenue 52, Fillmore Street, Shady Lane, Orchard Avenue, Enterprise
Way, 4™ Street and Vine Street.

Location: Escondida Pointe and various locations throughout the City.

Estimated Project Schedule: 09/2022-12/2022

Estimated Cost: $750,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Proposed Project 2: Avenue 50 Widening Project

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 50 from 2 lanes to 4 lanes from Calhoun
Street to Cesar Chavez Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical
undergrounding, sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping.

Location: Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street

Estimated Project Schedule: 3/2023-12/2023

Estimated Cost: $9,250.000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also utilize Fiscal Year 2022-23
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of
these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City is reaffirming to the public and the
State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account
revenues:

Proposed Project 1: Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 17

Project Description: Improve the street pavement and resurfacing within the Valencia
and Las Plumas Neighborhoods and other streets throughout the City.

Location: Valencia and Las Plumas Neighborhoods, Avenue 48, and Vista Del Norte.
Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-08/2022

Estimated Cost: $920,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Proposed Project 2: Avenue 48 Widening Project

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 48 from 2 lanes to 5 lanes from Dillon to Van
Buren Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical undergrounding,
sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping.

Location: Avenue 48 from Dillon to VVan Buren St

Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-01/2023

Estimated Cost: $2,046,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Proposed Project 3: 2022 Citywide Pedestrian Safety Improvement Project

Page 65

Iltem 7.




Project Description: Improve pedestrian safety in critical areas including sidewalk and
crosswalk repair, street lighting, ADA ramp repair, and striping.

Location: Various locations on major and minor corridors throughout the City including,
but not limited to, Avenue 52 and Avenue 53.

Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-09/2022

Estimated Cost: $500,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

FISCAL IMPACT:

The SB 1 Anticipated revenues are for an amount of $1,090,155 for the Fiscal Year 2022-23.
This resolution adopting a list of projects for fiscal year 2022/23, funded by SB 1: Road Repair
and Accountability Act will benefit the City of Coachella by maintaining City eligibility to
continue receiving SB1 funding.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution 2022-29

Page 66

Iltem 7.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR
2022-23 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY
ACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017
(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor
in April 2017 to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide;
and

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the
residents of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which
projects have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal
year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1,
which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule
for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $1,090,155 in RMRA funding in Fiscal
Year 2022-23 from SB 1; and

WHEREAS, this is the sixth year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and will
enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options
for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and

WHEREAS, the City has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into
our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and

WHEREAS, the City used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1 project
list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-effective projects that also
meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate streets,
add safety and active transportation infrastructure throughout the City this year and other similar
projects into the future; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment
found that the City’s streets and roads are in a very good condition and this revenue will help us
increase the overall quality of our road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and
roads into an excellent condition; and

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets

Page 67

Iltem 7.




infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant
positive co-benefits statewide.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City
Council of the Coachella, State of California, as follows:

1.

2.

The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

The following list of newly proposed projects will be funded in part or solely with Fiscal
Year 2022-23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

Proposed Project 1: Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 18

Project Description: Improve the street pavement and resurfacing within the Escondida
Pointe neighborhood and various locations throughout the City including, but not limited
to, Avenue 50, Avenue 52, Fillmore Street, Shady Lane, Orchard Avenue, Enterprise Way,
4" Street and Vine Street.

Location: Escondida Pointe and various locations throughout the City.

Estimated Project Schedule: 09/2022-12/2022

Estimated Cost: $750,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Proposed Project 2: Avenue 50 Widening Project

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 50 from 2 lanes to 4 lanes from Calhoun Street
to Cesar Chavez Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical
undergrounding, sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping.

Location: Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street

Estimated Project Schedule: 3/2023-12/2023

Estimated Cost: $9,250.000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also utilize Fiscal Year 2022-
23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the
relisting of these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City is reaffirming to
the public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and
Rehabilitation Account revenues:

Proposed Project 1: Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 17

Project Description: Improve the street pavement and resurfacing within the VValencia and
Las Plumas Neighborhoods and other streets throughout the City.

Location: Valencia and Las Plumas Neighborhoods, Avenue 48, and Vista Del Norte.
Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-08/2022

Estimated Cost: $920,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Resolution No. 2022-29
Page 2

Page 68

Iltem 7.




Proposed Project 2: Avenue 48 Widening Project

Project Description: Widening of Avenue 48 from 2 lanes to 5 lanes from Dillon to Van
Buren Street including street lighting, drainage improvements, electrical undergrounding,
sidewalk and bicycle lanes and landscaping.

Location: Avenue 48 from Dillon to VVan Buren St

Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-01/2023

Estimated Cost: $2,046,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

Proposed Project 3: 2022 Citywide Pedestrian Safety Improvement Project

Project Description: Improve pedestrian safety in critical areas including sidewalk and
crosswalk repair, street lighting, ADA ramp repair, and striping.

Location: Various locations on major and minor corridors throughout the City including,
but not limited to, Avenue 52 and Avenue 53.

Estimated Project Schedule: 06/2022-09/2022

Estimated Cost: $500,000

Estimated Project Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Resolution No. 2022-29
Page 3

Page 69

Iltem 7.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-29 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23" day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Page 70

Resolution No. 2022-29
Page 4

Iltem 7.




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Andrew Simmons, P.E. City Engineer
SUBJECT: Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2022/2023, the Local

Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year
Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A Funding

Item 8.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Maintenance of Effort Certification Statement for Fiscal
Year 2022/2023, the Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, and submit the Projected Five
Year Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A Funding.

BACKGROUND:

The requirements for receipt of Measure A Local Street and Roads funding are to submit a Five-
Year Capital Improvement Projects Plan (CIP), a signature on the Maintenance of Effort
Certification, and a Project Status Report for the prior fiscal year funding.

The Five Year CIP plan is a list of proposed uses for Measure A Local Streets and Roads funding
and must be based upon the revenue projections provided from Riverside County Transportation
Commission. The projects include the description of the anticipated project, the funding sources
of the project, and expenditures that will be anticipated from year to year.

The Measure A Ordinance requires annual certification that discretionary General Fund
expenditures for transportation related construction and maintenance activities for Fiscal Year
2022/2023 will meet or exceed the Maintenance of Effort Certification Base Year requirement.
This certification process is one part of the regulations to receive Measure A funding.

The Riverside County Transportation Commission must also receive a Project Status Report for
the prior fiscal year. The purpose of this report is to document the progress to date on engineering,
right-of-way acquisition, and the construction that Measure A is funding as well as the completion
date or anticipated completion date.

Page 71




FISCAL IMPACT:

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the FY 2022/2023 Maintenance of Effort Certification
Statement, the Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year
Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A will benefit the City of Coachella
to receive Measure A funding.

ATTACHMENTS:

Measure A FY 2022/23 Revenue Projections

FY 2022-2026 CIP and 21-22 Project Status Report

FY 2022/23 Measure A Maintenance of Effort Certification Statement
City of Coachella Measure A Final Report

City of Coachella 5 Year Measure A Funding Capital Projects

orwdPE

Page 72

Item 8.




Item 8.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

MEASURE A LOCAL STREETS AND ROADS PROGRAM ALLOCATION (PROJECTION)
FY 2022/23 ORIGINAL (1/12/2022)

FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 FY 2024/25 FY 2025/26 FY 2026/27
Western County
Local Streets & Roads
BANNING $ 857,000 $ 874,000 $ 891,000 $ 909,000 $ 927,000
BEAUMONT 1,512,000 1,542,000 1,573,000 1,604,000 1,636,000
CALIMESA 274,000 279,000 285,000 291,000 297,000
CANYON LAKE 262,000 267,000 272,000 277,000 283,000
CORONA 5,726,000 5,841,000 5,958,000 6,077,000 6,199,000
EASTVALE 1,997,000 2,037,000 2,078,000 2,120,000 2,162,000
HEMET 2,531,000 2,582,000 2,634,000 2,687,000 2,741,000
JURUPA VALLEY 3,557,000 3,628,000 3,701,000 3,775,000 3,851,000
LAKE ELSINORE 1,985,000 2,025,000 2,066,000 2,107,000 2,149,000
MENIFEE 2,646,000 2,699,000 2,753,000 2,808,000 2,864,000
MORENO VALLEY 5,710,000 5,824,000 5,940,000 6,059,000 6,180,000
MURRIETA 3,484,000 3,554,000 3,625,000 3,698,000 3,772,000
NORCO 931,000 950,000 969,000 988,000 1,008,000
PERRIS 3,001,000 3,061,000 3,122,000 3,184,000 3,248,000
RIVERSIDE 10,257,000 10,462,000 10,671,000 10,884,000 11,102,000
SAN JACINTO 1,310,000 1,336,000 1,363,000 1,390,000 1,418,000
TEMECULA 4,120,000 4,202,000 4,286,000 4,372,000 4,459,000
WILDOMAR 928,000 947,000 966,000 985,000 1,005,000
RIVERSIDE COUNTY 7,829,000 7,986,000 8,146,000 8,309,000 8,475,000
SUBTOTAL-Western County 58,917,000 60,096,000 61,299,000 62,524,000 63,776,000
Coachella Valley
CATHEDRAL CITY 1,905,000 1,943,000 1,982,000 2,022,000 2,062,000
COACHELLA 758,000 773,000 788,000 804,000 820,000
DESERT HOT SPRINGS 624,000 636,000 649,000 662,000 675,000
INDIAN WELLS 256,000 261,000 266,000 271,000 276,000
INDIO 2,454,000 2,503,000 2,553,000 2,604,000 2,656,000
LA QUINTA 1,865,000 1,902,000 1,940,000 1,979,000 2,019,000
PALM DESERT 3,199,000 3,263,000 3,328,000 3,395,000 3,463,000
PALM SPRINGS 2,924,000 2,982,000 3,042,000 3,103,000 3,165,000
RANCHO MIRAGE 1,111,000 1,133,000 1,156,000 1,179,000 1,203,000
RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2,297,000 2,343,000 2,390,000 2,438,000 2,487,000
SUBTOTAL-Coachella Valley 17,393,000 17,739,000 18,094,000 18,457,000 18,826,000
Palo Verde Valley
BLYTHE 969,000 988,000 1,008,000 1,028,000 1,049,000
RIVERSIDE COUNTY 251,000 256,000 261,000 266,000 271,000
SUBTOTAL-Palo Verde Valley 1,220,000 1,244,000 1,269,000 1,294,000 1,320,000
TOTAL ! $ 77,530,000 $ 79079000 $ 80,662,000 $ 82275000 $ 83,922,000

1 Administrative costs are allocated in accordance with a cost allocation plan on a quarterly basis. Accordingly, the Measure
A allocations to each geographic area by program will be reduced for such quarterly cost allocations.

Note: Estimate for Planning Purposes, subject to change and rounding differences.

Page 73



bgreenwood
Highlight


Agency:

COACHELLA

Prepared by: Andrew Simmons

MEASURE A

LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

PROJECT STATUS REPORT FY 2021/22

Item 8.

Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
Anticipated
Measure A Funds Estimated/
Expended (Est thru Actual
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Cost 6/30/2022) Completion Status
This project will improve the street
pavement and resurfacing. This will
include repair or replacement of In Progress to
T-1 R faci i Ik |
2022-01 ST-105 Street Resurfacing, curb, gu;ter, &dewa s new overiay, $ 919,085( $ 459,543 [ be completed In Progress
Phase 17 and the installation of handicap ;
. in FY 22/23
ramps as required. The street
pavements are identified from the
Pavement Management Update.
Pavement rehabilitation from In Progress to
2022-02 g:lﬁzf;:/enue 52and Calhoun to City Limits. This is a joint 487,075 243,537 | be completed In Progress
project with the County of Riverside. in FY 22/23
Rout and Seal cracks, remove current
painted traffic stripe and pavement
markings, microsurfacing,
. thermoplastic crosswalk and
2022-03 ST._133 Alrport Blvd Segments pavement markings, paint traffic 76,662 76,662 9/17/2021 Completed
Microsurfacing ) ) .
stripe with two coats and reflective
pavement markers. Joint project with
the County, with the County of
Riverside Lead.
TOTAL $ 1,482,822 [ $ 779,742
Project ftatueD <t FY21-22




Item 8.

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2022/23
Agency: COACHELLA
Prepared by: Andrew Simmons
Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
FY 2020/21 Audited Measure A Balance: $ 687,821
FY 2021/22 (Revised) Measure A Revenue: 795,000
Less: FY 2021/22 Project Status Report expenses: (779,742)
Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 703,080
Estimated FY 2022/23 Measure A Allocation: 758,000
Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2022/23 Projects: $ 1,461,080
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Totaél:)rsczject M(T:?anlgse A
2022/23

Widen and improve Avenue 50
from Calhoun to Cesar Chavez,
including roadway widening,
2023-01 |0-93 Avenue 50 traffic engineering, traffic signal | $ 9,250,000 | $ 500,000
Widening Project e .
modifications. Sidewalk
improvements, bicycle lanes,
drainage and landscaping

This project will improve the
street pavement and
resurfacing. This will include
repair or replacement of curb,
gutter, sidewalks, new overlay,
and the installation of
handicap ramps as required.
The street pavements are
identified from the Pavement
Management Update.

ST-113 Street Pavement
2023-02 Rehabilitation Phase 18
22/23

758,000 258,000

This project will improve the
street pavement and
resurfacing. This will include
repair or replacement of curb,
ST-105 Street Resurfacing, | gutter, sidewalks, new overlay,
Phase 17 and the installation of
handicap ramps as required.
The street pavements are
identified from the Pavement
Management Update.

2022-01 919,085 459,543

EY 2022-23

Page 75




ST-129 Avenue 52 and

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

Pavement rehabilitation from
Calhoun to City Limits. This is a

Item 8.

2022-02 Calhoun joint project with the County of 487,075 243,537
Riverside.
TOTAL $ 11,414,160 | $ 1,461,080
EY 2022-23

Page 76




Item 8.

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2023/24
Agency: COACHELLA
Prepared by: Andrew Simmons
Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: $ -
Estimated FY 2023/24 Measure A Allocation: 773,000
Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2023/24 Projects: $ 773,000
. - . Total Project Measure A
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Cost Funds
2023/24
This project will improve the
street pavement and
resurfacing. This will include
repair or replacement of curb,
2024-01 ST-118 Street Resurfacing, gutter, s@ewalkg new overlay, $ 773,000 | $ 773,000
Phase 19 and the installation of

handicap ramps as required.
The street pavements are
identified from the Pavement
Management Update.

TOTAL $ 773,000 | $ 773,000

FY 2023-24

Page 77




Item 8.

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2024/25
Agency: COACHELLA
Prepared by: Andrew Simmons
Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: $ -
Estimated FY 2024/25 Measure A Allocation: 788,000
Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2024/25 Projects: $ 788,000
. L . Total Project Measure A
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Cost Funds
2024/25

This project will improve the
street pavement and
resurfacing. This will include $ 788,000 | $ 788,000
repair or replacement of curb,
gutter, sidewalks, new overlay,
and the installation of handicap
ramps as required. The street
pavements are identified from
the Pavement Management
Update.

ST-128 Street Resurfacing,

2025-01 Phase 20

TOTAL $ 788,000 | $ 788,000

FY 2024-25

Page 78




Item 8.

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2025/26
Agency: COACHELLA
Prepared by: Andrew Simmons
Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: $ -
Estimated FY 2025/26 Measure A Allocation: 804,000
Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2025/26 Projects: $ 804,000
. _— . Total Project Measure A
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Cost Funds
2025/26

This project will improve the
street pavement and
resurfacing. This will include
repair or replacement of curb,

ST-132 Street Resurfacing, gutter, sidewalks, new overlay,
2026-01 Phase 21 and the installation of handicap $ 804,000 | $ 804,000
ramps as required. The street
pavements are identified from
the Pavement Management
Update.

TOTAL $ 804,000 | $ 804,000

FY 2025-26

Page 79




Item 8.

MEASURE A
LOCAL STREETS
AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2026/27
Agency: COACHELLA
Prepared by: Andrew Simmons
Phone #: 760-398-5744
Date: 3/14/2022
Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: $ -
Estimated FY 2026/27 Measure A Allocation: 820,000
Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2026/27 Projects: $ 820,000
. - . Total Project Measure A
Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Cost Funds
2026/27
This project will improve the street
pavement and resurfacing. This
will include repair or
replacement of curb, gutter,
202701 [D 135 Street sidewalks, new overlay, and the | $ 820,000 [ $ 820,000

Resurfacing, Phase 22 installation of handicap ramps as

required. The street pavements
are identified from the Pavement
Management Update.

TOTAL $ 820,000 | $ 820,000

FY 2026-27

Page 80




FY 2022/23
MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned agrees and certifies for the city of Coachella (the “Agency”) that
sales tax transportation funds received pursuant to Ordinance No. 02-001 of the
Riverside County Transportation Commission (“Measure A”) shall be used in
compliance with the Commission’s Maintenance of Effort Guidelines and a base
year amount of $92,205, approved by the Commission at its September 14, 2011
meeting, and that the Agency shall not use such funds to replace discretionary local
funds previously expended by the Agency for local transportation purposes. The
Agency hereby acknowledges that the failure of the Agency to continue such local
expenditure shall result in a reduction or loss of Measure A funds. Additionally, the
Agency commits to expending Measure A Local Streets and Roads funds for
projects listed in the Five Year Capital Improvement Plan as approved by Riverside
County Transportation Commission.

Dated: , 2020

Item 8.

CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

SECRETARY

Page 81




CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA

Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures
Applied to Measure A — Local Streets and Roads

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Page 82

Item 8.




Conrad’

Independent Accountant’s Report
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

The Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on Measure A - Local Streets and Roads
Program of the City of Coachella, California (“City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Riverside County Transportation Commission (“RCTC”) has agreed to and acknowledged that the
procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose whether the City was in
compliance with the Measure A - Local Streets and Roads Program grant terms and conditions
for the year ended June 30, 2021. Additionally, RCTC and the City have agreed to and
acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. This report may
not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all of the items
of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as
such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate
for their purposes.

The procedures and related findings are as follows:

1. Obtain the 2009 Measure A (Ordinance 02-001) compliance requirements. Western
County jurisdictions are required to participate in the Transportation Uniform Mitigation
Fee (“TUMF”) program and in the Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan (“MSHCP”),
which are administered by the Western Riverside Council of Governments (“WRCOG”)
and the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority (“RCA”), respectively.
Coachella Valley jurisdictions are required to participate in the TUMF program
administered by the Coachella Valley Association of Governments (“CVAG”). Indicate
participation in TUMF and/or MSHCP programs.

Finding: The City participates in the TUMF program administered by CVAG. No exceptions
were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

2. Obtain the City’s approved 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (“CIP”) from RCTC for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

3. Obtain a detailed general ledger and balance sheet from the City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021.

a. lIdentify the amount of Measure A cash and investments recorded at June 30, 2021.
Compare amount to Measure A fund balance and provide an explanation for any
difference greater than 25% fund balance.

Page 83

Item 8.




Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

Item 8.

Finding: Measure A cash and investments were $611,655 at June 30, 2021. The
difference between Measure A cash and investments of $611,655 and fund balance
of $687,821 is $76,166 or 11% of the fund balance.

b. Identify amounts due from other funds.

Finding: There were no amounts due from other funds at June 30, 2021.

c. Identify the components of ending fund balance for Measure A activity.

Finding: Ending fund balance for Measure A activity was unassigned in the amount of
$687,821 at June 30, 2021.

Identify the existence of any restatement of Measure A fund balance and inquire
of management as to the reason for any restatement.

Finding: We noted no restatement of Measure A fund balance at June 30, 2020.

Compare ending fund balance to total revenues for the current year and prior two
years. If ending fund balance is greater than the sum of total revenues for the
three-year period, inquire of management as to the reason(s) for the accumulation
of fund balance.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure. The
City’s ending fund balance did not exceed the cumulative total revenues for the 3-
year period as illustrated below.

Revenue for year ended June 30, 2021 $ 768,424

Revenue for year ended June 30, 2020 711,513

Revenue for year ended June 30, 2019 695,343

Total Revenue for the 3-year period $ 2,175,280

Fund balance for year ended June 30, 2021 $ 687,821

4. Obtain an operating statement for Measure A activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2021 (see Exhibit A), including budget amounts.

a. Review the revenues in the operating statement.

Inquire of management as to what fund was used to record Measure A revenues
received from RCTC and document total revenues for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021.

Finding: The City accounts for Measure A revenue in its Local Transportation Fund
— Measure A (Fund #117). The City recorded total revenues in the amount of
$768,424 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Page 84




Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

Item 8.

Obtain a listing of Measure A payments made from RCTC to the City. Compare
the Measure A revenues recorded by the City to the listing of payments made by
RCTC.

Finding: We identified no variances between the Measure A revenues recorded by
the City and the RCTC Measure A payment schedule, which totaled $766,227.

Determine the amount of interest allocated to Measure A activity for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021.

Finding: The City allocated interest income in the amount of $5,492 and charged
investment fees in the amount of $3,295 to the Measure A activity for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021. This resulted in a net interest income of $2,197.

b. Review the expenditures in the operating statement.

Inquire of management as to what fund is used to record Measure A expenditures
and document total expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Finding: The City accounts for Measure A expenditures in its Local Transportation
Fund — Measure A (Fund #117). The City recorded total expenditures in the
amount of $270,288 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Select expenditures for testing that comprise at least 20% of total Measure A
expenditures.

Finding: The City recorded Measure A expenditures in the amount of $270,288.
We selected $270,288 or 100% for testing.

1. For the expenditures selected for testing, compare the dollar amount recorded
in the general ledger to the supporting documentation.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

2. For the expenditures selected for testing, review the 5-Year CIP, and note
whether the projects claimed were included in the 5-Year CIP and whether they
constitute allowable costs.

Finding: Expenditures selected for testing were included in the 5-Year CIP and
were allowable costs. No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this
procedure.

Inquire of management as to the nature of any transfers (in and out) recorded in
the Measure A Fund. For any transfers out, determine if nature of transfer out was
included in the 5-Year CIP.

Page 85




Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

Item 8.

Finding: We noted transfers out from the Measure A fund in the amount of
$270,288 to the CIP Project Fund. These transfers represent reimbursements for
projects included in the 5-Year CIP.

iv. Inquire of management as to the amount of general or non-project-related costs, if
any, included in expenditures. If indirect costs exceed 8% of Measure A revenue,
inquire of management as to the basis for indirect costs charged to Measure A. If
indirect costs are identified, determine if such costs are included in the 5-Year CIP.

Finding: Per discussion with the City management, there were no indirect costs
recorded for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

v. Inquire of management as to the amount of debt service expenditures recorded in
the Measure A fund and determine if such costs are included in the 5-Year CIP.

Finding: There were no debt service expenditures recorded in the Measure A Fund
that were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

1. Compare the debt service expenditures to prior year amount. If debt service
expenditures have increased or decreased at least 25%, inquire of
management as to the reason for the change in debt service expenditures.

Finding: There were no debt service expenditures recorded in the Measure A
Fund that were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

5. Obtain from RCTC a listing of jurisdictions that participate in the Western County or
Coachella Valley TUMF programs.

a.

If the jurisdiction is a participant in the TUMF program, select at least one
disbursement for validation as to the amount remitted to WRCOG or CVAG, as
applicable.

Finding: We selected one disbursement of $67,962 for validation. The payment
selected for testing indicated that the TUMF was collected and remitted to CVAG as
required.

Indicate the total amount of TUMF collected and remitted during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021.

Finding: The total amount of TUMF collected during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021 was $483,330. The total amount of TUMF remitted during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021 was $482,318. The difference in the amount of $1,012 was due to a
TUMF collection for FY 2020-21 in the amount of $1,012 which should have been
applied to Accounts Receivable. The City made the correction to take out the $1,012
from the TUMF account prior to the issuance of this report.

6. Obtain from RCTC a listing of jurisdictions that participate in the Western County MSHCP
program.

Page 86




Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

Item 8.

a.

If the jurisdiction is a participant in the Western County MSHCP program, select at
least one disbursement for validation as to the amount remitted to RCA.

Finding: The City is not a participant in the Western County MSHCP program.

Inquire of management as to the existence of any fees collected in prior years that
were not remitted to RCA by the end of this fiscal year.

Finding: The City is not a participant in the Western County MSHCP program.

Indicate the total amount of Western County MSHCP fees collected and remitted
during the fiscal year.

Finding: The City is not a participant in the Western County MSHCP program.

Obtain from RCTC the Maintenance of Effort (‘MOE”) base year requirement, including its

supporting detail calculations for the City, and the carryover amount allowed as of the
beginning of the fiscal year.

a.

Obtain from the City a calculation of its current year MOE amount in a format similar
to its base year calculation. See Exhibit B.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure.
Compare the current year MOE amounts from the General Fund to the general ledger.
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

Review the General Fund general ledger to determine if there were any transfers in to
fund any MOE amounts.

Finding: No transfers in were noted as a result of applying this procedure.

Compare the amount of current year MOE expenditures to the MOE base requirement
and add any excess to, or subtract any deficiency from, the carryover amount.

Finding: We noted that current year MOE expenditures of $1,257,406 were greater
than the MOE base requirement of $92,205 resulting in an excess of $1,165,201 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

If the amount of discretionary funds spent is less than the MOE base requirement
(MOE deficiency), determine the amount of any prior year MOE carryover using the
information obtained from RCTC and reduce the MOE deficiency by any available
MOE carryover to determine an adjusted current year expenditure amount.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of applying this procedure. The City’s
discretionary funds spent in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 exceeded the MOE

Page 87




Board of Commissioners
Riverside County Transportation Commission
Riverside, California

base year requirement. The City’s MOE carryover at June 30, 2021 is calculated as

follows:

MOE excess at July 1, 2020 $ 7,638,915
Current year MOE expenditures 1,257,406
Less: MOE base requirement (92,205)

Excess MOE for fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 1,165,201

MOE excess at June 30, 2021 $ 8,804,116

We were engaged by RCTC to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not, conduct an examination or
review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion,
respectively on the Measure A - Local Streets and Roads Program compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of RCTC and the City to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures
engagement.

The City’s management is responsible for the accounting records. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in the report. Consequently, we
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described above, either for
the purpose for which this report has been requested, or for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and
management of RCTC and the City Council and management of the City of Coachella and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Convad LLL

Lake Forest, California
September 29, 2021

Page 88

Item 8.




EXHIBIT

CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA
Measure A Operating Statement
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(Unaudited)
Variance From
Final Budget
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Measure A $ 531,000 $ 766,227 $ 235,227
Interest income - 2,197 2,197
Total revenues 531,000 768,424 237,424
Expenditures:
Capital improvements 645,288 270,288 375,000
Total expenditures 645,288 270,288 375,000
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ (114,288) $§ 498,136 $ 612,424

Page 89

Item 8.




FY 2020/21 Construction and Maintenance Expenditures
(Round to nearest dollar)

CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA

Measure A MOE Calculation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(Unaudited)

Exhibit B

Item 8.

Project Expenditures Included in General Ledger Total Cost General Fund Measure A Federal State City Funds Other
Construction:
ST-119 La Ponderosa $ 1,829,798 | $ -13 270,288 $ 1,493,011 66,500
ST-123 Urban Greening 3,685,497 3,189,153 496,344
Maintenance:
Salaries and benefits for street maintenance personnel 636,635 636,635
Professional services 226,416 226,416
Repairs and maintenance costs 1,909 1,909
Rentals 15,912 15,912
Energy charges 192,810 192,810
Supplies 171,410 171,410
Other 12,314 12,314
Eng ing/Ad istrative Overhead Not Allocated to Specific Projects:
Expenditure Totals $ 6,772,701 | $ 1,257,406 | $ 270,288 $ 4,682,164 562,844

Deductions for Special Consideration (Deductions Must Also Be Included in
Project Expenditures Above): Total Project Cost General Fund State Reason Why Project Expenditure Should Be Deducted from MOE
Construction: $ -19 -
Maintenance:
Engii ing/Ad istrative Overhead Not Allocated to Specific Projects:

$ -1$ -

Total GF Expenditures | $ 1,257,406

Minus Deductions -

MOE Base Year $ 1,257,406

Base Year Requirement (92,205
MOE excess for fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 $

1,165,201

Page 90




. . Estimated D
City of Coachella 5 Year Measure A Funding | 1, project || Expenditures s 3
Capital Projects Cost for FY > 2
FY 2022-23
ST-93 |Avenue 50 Widening Project S 9,250,000 || S 8,500,000 S 500,000
ST-105 |Street Resurfacing, Phase 17 S 919,085 || $ 459,543 S 459,543
ST-113 (Street Resurfacung, Phase 18 S 758,000 || S 758,000 S 258,000
ST-129 ([Avenue 52 and Calhoun S 487,075 || S 243,537 S 243,537
Sub-totals | $ 11,414,160 $ 9,961,080 $ 1,461,080
FY 2023-24
ST-118 |[Street Resurfacing, Phase 19 $ 773,000 (| $ 773,000 [[| $ 773,000
Sub-totals || $ 773,000 $ 773,000 $ 773,000
FY 2024-25
ST-128 [Street Resurfacing, Phase 20 $ 788,000 || $ 788,000 ||| $ 788,000
Sub-totals| $ 788,000 $ 788,000 $ 788,000
FY 2025-26
ST-132 [Street Resurfacing, Phase 21 $ 804,000 || $ 804,000 ||| $ 804,000
Sub-totals || $ 804,000 $ 804,000 $ 804,000
FY 2026-27
ST-135 |[Street Resurfacing, Phase 22 $ 820,000 (|$ 820,000 [|$ 820,000
Sub-totals || $ 820,000 $ 820,000 $ 820,000
Totals| $ 14,599,160 $ 13,146,080 $ 4,646,080
Page 91
\MEASURE A\FY Measure A 2022-23\CIP 5 Year Measure A.xlsx




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FroM: Céstulo R. Estrada, Utilities Manager
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment No. 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for

construction materials and quality assurance testing in the amount of $25,000 for
the Avenue 48 and Harrison Street Sewer Improvement Project, City Project S-
24,

Item 9.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize City Manager to execute a contract amendment with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC
for construction materials and quality assurance testing in the amount of $25,000 for the Avenue
48 and Harrison Street Sewer Improvement Project, City Project S-24.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Coachella has adopted a zoning ordinance for the Wrecking Yard (M-W) district that
has resulted in several conditional use permits, architectural review applications and proposed
projects. These existing projects and proposed projects require wastewater infrastructure and
wastewater services. Currently there is no sewer availability. There are approximately twenty-two
parcels that this project could service.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

On December 8, 2021, City Council authorized an agreement with Atlas Technical Consultants
for construction materials and quality assurance testing services for the Avenue 48 and Harrison
Street Sewer Improvement Project. Amendment #1 will ensure adequate materials testing and
quality assurance continue throughout the project duration.

Staff recommends approving Amendment #1 to Atlas Technical Consultants to continue materials
testing and quality assurance for the Avenue 48 and Harrison Street Sewer Improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Additional funding for these services will be appropriated from the Sewer Connection Fund (361)
to project S-24.

Page 92




FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF COACHELLA

AND ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS LLC
Project S-24

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (**Amendment") is made and entered into as of March 23,
2022 by and between the City of Coachella (*"City") and Atlas Technical Consultants
LLC (“Consultant”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth
herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals. This Amendmentis made with the respect to the following facts and purposes:

a. On or about December 8, 2021, the City and Consultant entered into that certain
agreement entitled "City of Coachella Professional Services Agreement” between
the City and Consultant in the amount of $25,000.00 for project S-24.

b. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this
Amendment.

2. Amendment. Section 3.3.1, Compensation, of the Agreement is hereby amended in it’s
entirely to read as follows:

"3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized
reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement as set forth in
Exhibit *"A'" at the rates set forth in Exhibit **A'" attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference. Thetotal compensation shall notexceed fifty thousand
($50,000) without written approval of the City’s representative. Extra Work may be
authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and
manner set forth in this Agreement.”

3. Continuing Effect of Agreement.  Except as amended by this Amendment, all
provisions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
From and after the date of this Amendment, whenever the term **Agreement™
appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement as amended by this
Amendment.

4. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that
they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the
performance of the obligations they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment.

Page 93

Item 9.




5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in duplicate originals, each of which is
deemed to be an original, but when taken together shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the
day and year first set forth above, which date shall be considered by the parties to be the
effective date of this Amendment.

CITY OF COACHELLA ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS LLC
By: By:

Gabriel Martin Ron Badour

City Manager Director of CMT & Field Services

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Attest:

Andrea Carranza
Deputy City Clerk

Page 94

Item 9.




Exhibit "A"

SCHEDULE OF FEES

California Prevailing Wage
Effective February 1, 2021

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Professional (Engineering, Geology, Environment, Envelope Services)
Director/Principal Professional

T a1 o g o) {=TT=] (o] o - | PSRRI
Lo =T o g ) 1T T oo SO
ST 1l o 0] (=TS T o = PR
(D= ol I RSO UPRTR
[Tz 3 (=Y I Y= S PRE
Project Management

SENIOT PrOJECE IMANAGET ....eeiii ittt e e e e ettt e e e e e et e et eeeeeeaatbeeeeeaeessnsbaaeeeaeeesansaeaeeeaeessasnsseeeens $160
(o= 1Y =T g E= T [T OO RO SP PP PPN 135
AdMINISIrative ASSISTANT ... ... ettt e e e ettt et e e e e e e eae e e e e e e e e e e nnneeeeaaeeaaannneeeeaaaeaaannnane 67
Field Services (Geotechnical, Special Inspection)

= o I TU o= Y R $118
LA Certified Grading INSPECLOL ........cciiiiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e sasaasbeeeeeeseessntaeeeeeeseasansaeneeaaeaaas 123
Off SO INSPECLON ...ttt a e e ettt e ettt e e ea et e e et et e e e be e e e e ee b et e s aabn e e e nnne e e s nereeeean 9
(=T o ol = 1 (ol VA =Tt 1o 1 o7 =T o 1RO PPRPP 74
Group 1 (Field Soils, Material TESIET) ......c.uiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e e e eesentbeaeeaaeessnsrraeeeeas 108
(€1 o TN oI (ST o =YoT = 1 T o =Ted 1 (o] o ) PRSPPI 113
(€T 0T o T I (N1 I Y1 T | SR 117
(0701513 o TSP UP SO 166

Field Services (SUE Level B Utility Evaluations and Rebar Locating)
Line Tracer, Ground Penetrating Radar, Electromagnetics, Magnetics

FUIT DAY ettt ettt e okt e e et e 4o a et e 4k et e e a bt e e ea et e e ettt e e ab et e e aa b e e e e abr e e e nan $1,950
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $250 applies to projects billed on hourly rates)..........c.cccccvevceevireineennnn. 215
=Y £ =Y g =T oo o N 300
Map (Per day OF fIElT WOTK) ...ttt e et e et e e e abe e e s naneeas 350

Field Services (Geophysical Data Acquisition)

UST, Landfill, Oil Well, Void, Pile Integrity Testing
L] - PSPPSR $2,400
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $335 applies to projects billed on hourly rates)..........cccccccveveeevviecveennn. 270

Field Services (Advanced Geophysical Studies)
Seismic, Sting ERT, Resistivity, Groundwater, UXO/MEC

LU N 7= R $3,000
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $550 applies to projects billed on hourly rates)...........ccccceeevviveiivecienn. 325
Field Services (Seismic ReMi)
ONE LINE ... $1,500
= Tod 1o (o1 1] F= I N o = USSP PEERRI 300
For Pavement/ReqUITES DIllING .......cooii ittt e ettt e e e e et e e e e e s e et e e e e e e s e nnssneeaeeseasnnnes 300
Field Services (Vibration Monitoring)
1Yo o 117222 1T o T $1,000
EQUIPMENT (DAIIY) .ottt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ————eaaeeeaanaa——eeaaeeeaannarraneaaeeeannnaes 200
Daily Analysis & RepOrting (D@ily) ......cooueiiiiuiieeiiiie ettt 75
AT TR T o T Al (=Y o= = 1[0 o N 750
Manned Vibration MONITOIING ..o e e e e e e s Quote
Field Services (Building Envelope)
1= o B =Yoo T Y PSPPSR PUP PO $125
1= (o I I =or o T = = I RSP SERTT 115
Electronic Leak Detection (hourly, 4 hour MinimUuM).........c.ooii oot e s e e s e e e e e e sneeeeean 250
Fenestration Testing (ASTM E1105/E783) — Hourly Rate (2 techniCians) ... 400
Fenestration Testing (AAMA 501.2) — Hourly Rate (2 teChniCians) .........coooo i 225
Drainage Efficiency of Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) Clad Wall Assemblies (ASTM E2273) ....... 1,500
Page 95

Revised February 1, 2021

Item 9.



bgreenwood
Text Box
Exhibit "A"


Mﬁc\ ftem 9.

Travel and Miscellaneous

[T G O o TR $55/hour
Travel Time ......ooocciiieeeeeiiee. Hourly Rate (or $125/hour beyond 1 hour from San Diego for Geophysical Crews)
Overtime and Saturday Rate ..........cc.ooi i 1.5 x Regular Hourly Rate
Sunday and Nationally Recognized Holiday Rate (including the day after Thanksgiving) ......... 2 x Regular Hourly Rate
RUSH SUFCRAIGE ... .ottt e et e s e e Normal Rate plus 50%
Per Diem (variable, depending on [0CAtION) ...........iii it e e e Quote
Prevailing Wage Hourly Surcharge for Technicians and Inspectors per California Labor Code §720, et. Seq .... Quote
Specialty EQUIPMENT SUICNAIGE ........cooiiiiiiiii ettt e e et sne e e e s Quote
LABORATORY TESTS

Soil and Aggregate

California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D854 ) ...ttt ettt s e e e e e abaeeennee $418
(O 111 {074 0 TE= T [aaT o= oz A (@ 1201 ) R 206
Clay LUumps in AGregate (ASTIM CT42) ... ..ottt e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e stb e e e eaaeeesansbeaeaaaeesaesssaeeeeas 150
CleaNNESS VAIUE (CAl 227 ) ...ttt ettt ekt e e sttt oot e e ok bt e e ab et e e eab et e e et e e e e atn e e nneeas 200
Consolidation (ASTIM D2435) ....cceiiiiieiiiee et ee e ettt e e st e e e et eeeaanteeeaaneeeeeaneeeeaasaeeeeanseeeeanneeeeansteeeeanneeeeaneeas 200
Corrosivity Testing (Soluble Chlorides and Sulfates, pH and Resistivity)...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiii e 187
Crushed Particles (Cal 205, ASTIM DB93)......ccuii ittt eeee sttt ee st e st e sabe e e beeeabeeabeeenbeeabeeenbeeaseeenneean 150
Direct Shear (ASTIM D3B080) ....ceeeieeeeeiiiieeaitieeeeree e e eteee e e teeeeaaeeeeaanaeeeeaseeeeaaneeeeeamseeeeanseeeeaanseeeeanseeeeansseeeaanseeesanneeeean 260
Durability Factor (Cal 229, ASTIM D3744) ...ttt ettt e e e e et e e e e e e et et e e e e eassasseeeaaesessnsbaneeaeeaans 97
Durability Index (Cal 229, ASTIM D3T744) ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b e et e e s te e e sae e e sbbeeaneeesbbeeaneeesbneenneeenes 224
Expansion INAeX (ASTIM DA4289).......couiieiiiiee e eteee et e et e e e ettt e e ettt e e s aeeeeesmseeeeaseeeeanseeeeanseeeeanseeeesanseeeeanneeeean 177
Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T304 ) ...ttt e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e ee st e reeeeeeasnsaaaeeaeeaaaas 200
FINENESS MOAUIUS (ASTIM C136) ...eeeeiiiiee ittt ettt ettt r et e e ettt e e st et e e sabe e e e et bt e e sanbe e e e sabeeeeabbeeennes 24
Flat & Elongated PieCes (ASTM D471 . ittt e ettt e e et e e e st e e e st e e e e neeeeeanseeeeanseeeesanseeeeanneeeean 175
Light Weight PieCes (ASTM C23). ..ottt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e eaaasaeeeeeeseessnsaeseeeeeeasnsaaneeaeeaaas 175
Liquid Limit (Cal 204, ASTIM DA318).....ueiiiiiieiiiee ittt se ettt et e sttt et bt e saee e sttt e aaseesabeeamseesebeesneeesabeeanseesmbeesnneesnnes 75
Los Angeles Abrasion - 1 %z inch and smaller (Cal 211, ASTM C131) ..cuiiiiiiiiiiieee e 224
Maximum Density Check Point (ASTM DB98/D 1557 ...ttt e e e e e e e e sarae e e e e e e as 88
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture — 4 inch (ASTM D698, D1557)........cuiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiee e 200
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture — 6 inch (ASTM D698, D1557)........oeeiiiieiiiee e 220
Minimum Density (ASTM D556).......cciiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e e e s st a e e e e e e s eaabeaeeeaeessaasstseeeaeeseasnsraneaaeeeans 74
Moisture Content (Cal 226, ASTM C566, ASTIM D2216) ......cciuuieiiieiiiieiiee ettt ettt se e e e b e snneesenes 35
Natural Density Chunk Sample (ASTM D2937) .....ociiiiieeiiie et e et e ettt e e e sete e e sneeeeaaseeeeeanseeeeanneeeeanneeeennnes 45
Natural Moisture/Density Ring or Core Sample (ASTM D2937).....ccuuiiiiiiiiee ettt 40
Organic Impurities (Cal 213, ASTM CAD) ...ttt e et sb e e e s aa et e e et et e snre e e s nareeeeas 90
Organic Matter (ASTIM D2974)....... e ieiee ettt ettt e et e e st e e sttt e e e ne e e e e amneeeeameeeeeaneeeeeanseeeeanseeeeaanseeesanneeeean 75
Percent Finer than #200 (ASTM C117, ASTM DT1140) ...ttt et e e e e et e e e e e e e s snsraeeeaaeeens 70
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D2434) ........ooo ittt e et sne e e naneee s 200
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D5084) ........ooeiiiieeiiiiee e eeee et ee et e e s ee e s st e e e aeeeeeeaneeeeesmneeeeanneeeeenee Quote
Permeability Undisturbed Sample (ASTM D5084) ........oooi ittt e st e et e e e eeeanaeeesnee Quote
Petrographic Analysis (Cal 215, ASTIM C295) .......iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e nnee Quote
PH & Resistivity (Cal 843, ASTIM G57)...uuiiiiiiiiieeiiie e ie ettt e e e sttt e e s ane et e e sae e e e s ssteeeeanneeeeanneeeeansteeeeanseeeeanneeas 126
Plasticity INdex (Cal 204, ASTIM 4318)......uuiiiii ettt e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e st reeeaeeseasasaeeeaeeeessnsseaeeaaeaaaas 127
Potential Reactivity (ASTIM C289).......ccuui ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt be e e s ke e e bee e steeeaaeeesbbeeaneeesbbeeaneeesbeeenneeene 220
ReSIdUal ShEAT (ASTIM DBABT).......eeeiiieie et e e et eee e et e e et ee e st e e ateeeeeaneeeeeamseeeeanseeeeanseeesanseeeeansaeeeaanseeesanneeeean 442
ROCK COrreCHON (ASTIM DAT7T8)....ceiiieiiiiiieiie ettt e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e et b eaeeaeeessasbaaeeeaeessaasssseeeaaeeeaasnsbanaeaeeeans 26
R-Value (Cal 301, ASTIM D2844).......ooueeiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ekttt e e e be e e bt e e ebee e bee e sbeeeaaeeesbbeeaneeeabbeeaneeenbeeenneaene 276
SANACASHE TEST (USACKE). ... iiiieeiiiiee ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e et e e e e e teeeaameeeeesmneeee e s aeeeeanseeeeanneeeeansteeeeansaeeennneeas 195
Sand Equivalent (Cal 217, ASTM D24 19) ......ooi oottt e e e e et e e e e e e st e et eaaeeasntbeeeeaaeessnsraneeeaeeans 88
Sieve Analysis (ASTM C136, ASTM DB913, Cal 202) ......ccouieiiuieeiieiieeetieeiee et eiee et e seee st e s teesbe e sbeeebeeanseeeneeas 110
Sieve Analysis with Hydrometer (Cal 203, ASTM D422)........ooi i iiie et et eee e e e s e e sneee e e nnteeeeanneeeesneeas 200
Soil Cement Compression Strength (Cal 312, ASTM D1633)....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e e e e e e e e e 50
Soil Cement Cylinder Fabrication (Cal 312, ASTM D1632)......cocuiiiiiiiiieiiiiee ettt 100
S To] 0] o) [N O 1 Fo Ty To L= (O R 2 S 62
S To] 18] o] (SIS0 = Y (= 1 I PSPPI 62
Soundness 5 Cycles (Cal 214, ASTIM C88) .....coi ittt et e e s b e e st e nneees 375
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate (Cal 206, ASTM CA27) ...oooiieieiiieeeeee ettt eeee e snee e e eeee e e sneeas 115
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate (Cal 207, ASTM C128)......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 115
Triaxial Shear Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM DATE7)........ouioiuiiieiiiiie ettt Quote
Triaxial Shear Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850).........ccicuiiriiiiiieiiie ittt Quote
Triaxial Staged Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM DA7T67).......ccoiuiiiiiiiiee ittt nnneee s Quote
Triaxial Staged Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) .........couiiiiiiiiieieiiiee ettt Quote
Unconfined Compression (ASTIM D2166) ........cccuiieiiiieeeaiiiee et et e e et e e eeeeee s st eeeateeeeanneeeeeanneeeeanseeeesanseeesanneeeaan 162
Unit Weight Aggregate (Cal 212, ASTM C29).......cccc ettt st e et e s e e abeee e eanee 80

Page 96
ATLAS Page 2 of 4

Revised February 1, 2021



Mﬁc\ ftem 9.

Asphalt Concrete

Asphalt Core Specific Gravity (Cal 308, ASTIM D2726) .......ccoceiiiiiiiiiiee et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e snsreeeaaeseennenes $68
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity Waxed (Cal 308, ASTM D1188) ....ccuuiiiiiiiieiiiiie et 84
=0 TB1 ] To T T O e T g (=Y o (O 1Y < 22 TSP 178
LIRS (o] o] TaTe TN (@1 10 12 T RSP RUSR Quote
Gyratory Compacted Maximum Specific Gravity (AASHTO T312).......uiiiiiiiiiiiii e 350
Hamburg Wheel Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T324/Caltrans Section 39) .......cccceiiiiieiiiieiiiee e 900
Hveem Maximum Bulk Specific Gravity (Cal 308)..........coiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e et e e e e e e st e eeeaaeeaas
Hveem & Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiii ettt st
Ignition Oven Correction Factor (AASHTO T308) .......ueiiiiiiiie e iiee et ee e ee e e tee e e e e e e s e e e aneee e e snneeeeesnneeeean
Ignition Oven Degradation Factor (AASHTO T308) ......ccooiiiiiiiee ettt e et e e e e e et e e e e s e e snsaeneeaeeeaas
Marshall Density Stability & FIOW (ASTIM DBO927) ......coiiiiiiiieiieeeiie ettt ettt ettt siee et eesaee e staeesaee e sbbeesneeeseneesaeee e
Marshall Density (ASTIM DBO26)...........ueeeeiiieeeeiiiee e iee e et e e et e e e st e e ettt e e aanaeeeesnseeeeaseeeesanseeesanseeeeansaeeesanseeesanneeeean
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixtures Using Microwave (Cal 370)..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Moisture Vapor Susceptibility (Cal 307) ......c.uiiiiiiiie ittt
Optimum Bitumen Content (AASHTO R35/Cal 367) .....eeiiiiiiieieiiie et e e e e e e e e e e smneeeeannaeeeenns
Percent Bitumen Asphaltic Concrete (Cal 382, ASTIM DB307) .......ocuiiiiiiiee it eere e e e e e aeeaa e e
Residue by EVaporation (Cal 331) .......uiiiiiiii ettt sttt e e et e ean
Rice Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity AC (Cal 309, ASTM D2041)
Sieve Analysis Extracted Aggregate (Cal 382, ASTM D5444) ........ccoouiiiiiie ettt e e a e
Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) .......ooiiiiiiiiiiieiie i
StabilomMEtEr ValUE (Cal 306) ......cceieeieeiiiieeiiiiee ettt ee e ettt e e st e e et ee e e sttt e e s aneeeeesneeeeaasteeeeaaseeeeanneeeeeasbeeeeansneeennneeas
RAP Testing Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39) ..........cccceiiiiiiiiiieiiieeecieee e Quote
RAP Testing Not Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39) .........ccccevviiiiiiiieiiiiiieene Quote
Tensile Strength Ratio Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T283) ... ..uiiiiiiiieiiiee ettt 900
Wet Track ADrasion (ASTIM D3OT0).....cceiuiiieiiiiee ittt ettt et e et e e s ae et e e sabe e e e ettt e e snbeeeesabeeeeabneeenne 185
Concrete
2X2 CUDE COMPIESSION ....ueieitieiiieeittie ettt ettt e et e ettt e ettt atbeesa et e sbeeeaaeeeshee e bt e e sk et e st e e ket e be e e beeeabee e beeebeeebeeenbeeebeeenneean $27
Chloride 10N TeSHNG (ASTIM C 1218 ) .oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e ettt et e e e e e e et e et e e e e e e s nebeeeeeeeeeaansbeaeeeaeesaannnnneeeeas 220
Concrete Core CompresSioN (ASTIM C42) ... ..o ettt e et e st e e sttt e e e enee e e e enaeeeeanneeeeaanseeeeanneeeenn 59
Concrete Cylinder Compression (Cal 521, ASTM C39) .....uiiiiiiiieiii et e s sereee s 27
Flex Beam Modulus of Rupture (Cal 523, ASTM C78)......i ittt et e e e e e e e e e e nn 74
Modulus of Elasticity (Cal 522, ASTM C4B9) ........ooiiiiiieeiiiiee et e et et e e ree e e st e e e etee e e s saeeeeeanseeeeaseeeeaanneeeeanneeeean 261
Shotcrete Mockup Panel (ASTM CT140) .ottt ettt e et e st e e e s e e e abneeenan 1,040
Shotcrete Panel, 3 Cores Compression (CBC) ... ittt e e e e e et e e e e e e s nneeeeeeas 290
Shrinkage Hardened Concrete (ASTM C157 MOIfied) ........ueieiiiiiieiiiee e 371
Split Tensile Concrete CyliNder (ASTIM C496) ........ouiiiiiieiiiit ettt e e e e e st e s e e e s nareee s 74
TiME OF SO (ASTIM CAD3)....eeeiiiiiiiieiitt ettt et ea e bt a et bt e bt e eb et e b et e be e e be e e ket e bt e e b et e be e e beeeabeeebeeenee s 200
Trial Batch Fabrication (ASTIM C192) ...ttt et et e e ettt e e e ae e e e e an e e e aseeeesanseeeeanneeeeanneeeenanes 298
Unit Weight Hardened Concrete (ASTIM CB42).......couiii ittt ettt st e e e abbe e e e 55
Unit Weight Lightweight COncrete (ASTIM C567) .......eoii ittt et e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e annreeeaaaaeannn 69
Masonry
AbSOrption BIOCK (ASTIM C140) ....iiiiiiiieiiiiie e et ee e et ee e e et e e et e e et e e e s aneeeeesmaeeeeanseeeeeanseeeeamseeeeanseeeesanseeesannneeenn $115
(076] ] o] 1= (o] Yo (o] o PR UP SRR 155
Compression Block Standard (ASTM C140) .....cceiiiiiiiiiiee ittt ettt e e st e s eane e nneees 150
ComPpression BriCK (ASTIM CB7) .......uiiiiiieeiiie et ee ettt e e sttt e e st eeeaas e e e e anseeeeaneeeeaasaeeeaanseeeeanneeeeansteeeeansaeeeanneas 115
EffIOr@SCENCE BIOCK........cotiiiiiiite ettt ettt bt b e e bt e b e e bt e et et e ae e e sk et e ebe e e et e e e ene e e naneennee e e 175
EffloreSCeNCE BIiCK (ASTIM CB7)...ceee i iieiieiiee ettt ettt e e e e ekttt et e e e e e e kaee et e aaaeaanneeeeeaaaeaeannsaeeeaaaeasansnnneeaaeaannn 175
Grout Prism Compression (ASTM CT0T9) ... i iiee ettt e e st e e st e e e e st e e e aeeeeeaaneeeeesnseeeeaseeeesanseeesanneeeenn 27
Masonry Core CompreSSIiON (ASTIM CA2).....oocoo ittt e e e e e et e e e e e e e et e e e e aeessaasasseeeaeeeeaansbaneeaeeeaans 51
Masonry Core Shear (CBC 2T105A.4 ) ... ... ettt e ettt e e e e e et eeeeea e e e aanaeeeeeaaeeaaannsseeeaaaeaaannenneaaaaaannn 95
Masonry Prism Compression (ASTIM E44AT) ...ttt ettt e e et e e et e e e st e e e anae e e ennneeeeanneeeean 150
Mortar Bond Strength Pull TEst (ASTIM CA4B2) ........ueiiiiii ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e snsbanaeaaeeaans 62
[V To) =T @3/ 11 Lo L= g @7 0] g1 o =TS (o o FO RSO PURTR 27
Mortar Shear Strength (ANST 118) ... ittt e et e st e e e st e e e e st e e e eneeeeeanneeeeanseeeeennneeeesnneeeean 100
Relative Mortar SIrength (Cal 515) ....o.ueiiiiiiiie ettt et e sttt e e s bt e e et e e e snee e e s naneeeean 850
Shrinkage Masonry BIOCK (ASTIM CA426)........ueeeai it e ettt ettt e e e e e e e ebe et e e e e e e ansbeeeaaaeeeaansneneaeaeaeaannnneeeeann 250
Trial Grout PriSMS (ASTIM CO42) ...ttt et e e ettt e e st e e e et eeeameee e e e neeeeeasteeeeanseeeeanneeeeeanseeeeanneeeenneeas 38
Water Retention and Air Content (ASTM C270).........uii ittt ettt et e e e st e e snbe e e s sbeeeeanbreeennee 550
Page 97
ATLAS Page 3 of 4

Revised February 1, 2021



/ﬁhc\ ftem 9.

Metal

Yo | ST Y=Y g g o (YA o F= T L o TSR = RN $74
Bolt Assembly Tensile & Proof LOAd TeST........ooiiiiiiii et 125
Y Fo T [0 W TSR0yl == T3 o Y (5 (T SO 146
Post-Tension Tendon TeNSIle TeSHNG........ciiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeees 185
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Structural Steel (ASTM A370) ...ccoiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 180
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Reinforcing Steel (ASTM ABT5/AT06) .....cociiuieeeiiiiee et eee e e e e 125
Tensile Strength #14 - #18 Bar (ASTIM ABT5)....ci ittt e e e e et e e snee e e e anneeeean Quote
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #9 and Smaller (Cal 670)........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiie e Quote
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #10 10 #14 (Cal B70)........cccoiieiiiiee e e e s e e sneeeeeas Quote
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #18 (Cal B70) ........iiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e snneee s Quote
Miscellaneous

Fire Proofing Density Test (ASTM EBOS) .......cooiiiiiiiiiii ittt saee e e $69
Fiber Reinforced Polymer Tensile (ASTM D3039) .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e sneee e e e e e e e e annaeneeaaaaanan 520
Y = Y g E= T =T oY= = £ o ) o 70
Relative Humidity TeSt (ASTIM F2170) ...oiueiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e et e s teesabe e e mteesnbeeanbeesnbeeanneesees 80/kit
Concrete Vapor Emission Kits (ASTM FA869) ...ttt a et re e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnees 72/kit
YIS TotY | =T T=T oL U TSI O = T 1= S Various
DEfAUIL EXPENSE ... ..ttt e e ea et e oo ettt e ekt e e a bt e e e e e e b et et et n e e e eeean Various

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Prevailing wage rates will increase consistent with general prevailing wage determinations made by the California
Department of Industrial Relations.

All field services will be charged portal to portal with the following minimum charges:

1. The client will be invoiced only for the hours actually worked in 4- and 8-hour increments.

2. A 2-hour show-up charge will be applied to any service canceled the same day of service.

3. Work in excess of 8 hours up to 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 1.5 times the
standard rate.

4. Work in excess of 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 2 times the standard rate.

Work performed by field or laboratory personnel outside of normal business hours (6:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) will be
charged a premium on a case-by-case basis. Work performed for Geophysical Studies outside of a standard work week
will be charged an additional 30%.

Fees for specialty geophysical services such as seismic reflection, crosshole, gravity, pile integrity testing, vibration
monitoring, magnetotellurics, UXO, MEC, etc. will based on a per project basis. Utility focused projects requiring
specialized training such as MSHA (mines) or RSO (refineries) will be billed at a General Geophysical rate.

Other Direct Charges: Our company reserves the right to charge for services outside of the contract in the form of
reimbursables, including but not limited to, the following: diamond coring bits, fuel, patching materials, mileage, travel
time, equipment rental and administrative time.

Mileage will be charged at the standard federal rate per mile for distances over 50 miles from the location of dispatch.
Per Diem charges will be applied to projects outside a 50-mile radius of our office.

Subcontracted services will be charged at cost plus 20 percent.

Invoices will be submitted monthly. These invoices are due in full upon presentation to the client. Invoices outstanding
over 30 days will be considered past due. A finance charge computed at the rate of 1.5 percent per month, which is an
annual rate of 18 percent, will be charged on all past due accounts. If legal action is brought on delinquent accounts,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs of collection.

Our services are performed in accordance with the current standards of practice in the industry. No other warranty or
representation, express or implied, is made or intended.

Page 98

ATLAS Page 4 of 4
Revised February 1, 2021




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2021
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Nathan Statham, Finance Director
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-34, Approving Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for Fiscal

Year 2021-2022

Item 10.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council approve the mid-year budget adjustments outlined below and
adopt Resolution No. 2022-34 amending the budget for fiscal year 2021-2022.

BACKGROUND:

As the City approached the middle of the fiscal year, City finance staff evaluated the adopted
budget, revenue projections, and economic conditions for the remainder of the fiscal year. It is
standard procedure to perform a mid-year review of the City's budgetary and financial position to
ensure any deviations from the initial budget projections are proactively addressed. Staff also
reviews requests for appropriations to address new priorities that are unfunded or underfunded.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

Revenues

Recommended mid-year budgeted revenue decreases:

e Water Authority — Decrease connection fees ($300,000).
e Sanitary District — Decrease connection fees ($500,000).

Recommended mid-year budgeted revenue increases:

e General Fund - Increase Property Taxes ($150,000), Utility User Taxes ($160,000),
Construction Permit Fee Revenue ($150,000), Grants Revenue Transfers ($69,597) and Other
Revenues ($2,816,000).

e Grants Fund — Increases revenues for the derived product grant program ($69,597).

e Water Authority — Increase revenues for grant programs ($300,000) and other revenues
($17,000).

Page 99




Expenditures

Recommended mid-year expenditure appropriation increases:

e General Fund - Increase appropriations for:

©)

©)

(@]

e Development Impact Fees Fund - Increase appropriations for park improvements developer
reimbursement agreement ($297,500), bond trustee fees ($3,300) and general fund advance

4" of July event - $40,000

Solid waste SB 1383 implementation professional services - $25,000
6™ cycle housing element consultant - $9,000

Development impact fee audit firm analysis - $9,000

Dateland park mural donation - $10,000

Communications - $34,100

Software licensing - $52,000

IT consultants - $38,000

Computer & communication peripherals - $6,000

Emergency operations center (EOC) replacement laptops - $28,800
Park cleaning as special events - $10,000

Facilities maintenance - $19,000

Facilities configuration - $24,000

Fuel - $21,000

Animal control - $15,900.

interest ($25,000).

e Grants Fund — Increase appropriations for ARPA direct COVID costs ($36,800), derived
product grant funding ($69,600), AHSC transit hub GoHuman advertising ($30,000) and

AHSC transit hub van pool program ($1,160,000).

e LLMD Fund - Increase appropriations for landscape enhancements for LLMD 16 ($101,000).

e Water Authority — Increase appropriations for stand-by time ($42,000), water line repairs

($81,000) and the expenditure of IRWM Prop 1 grant funds ($300,000).

FISCAL IMPACT:

Below is a reconciliation of the City’s approved 2021-2022 General Fund budget to the proposed

adjusted budget:

Page 100

Item 10.




Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Approved Budget

Revenues $27,322,145
Expenditure Appropriations (26,804,488)
Approved Budget Surplus $ 517,657

Proposed mid-year revenue increase

Total increase 3,345,597
Less: one-time land sale (2,816,000)

529,597.00

Net revenue surplus 1,047,254.00

City Council Approved Appropriations

Special events (145,000)
Personnel funding (131,200)
Library programing (25,000)
New vehicle lease (76,600)
Servers replacement (31,000)
Billboard advertising (17,000)
Landscape Maintenance (29,400)
Pueblo Viejo ST-130 (556,800)

(1,012,000)

Proposed mid-year appropriations (341,800)

Net change in fund balance $  (306,546)

Approval of these mid-year budget adjustments will have the following fiscal impacts:

General Fund

o Revenues - net increase $3,345,597 ($529,597 operating + $2,816,000 one-time land sale).

o Expenditures — net increase $330,000.
o Fund balance — net increase $3,015,597 ($199,597 unrestricted, $2,816,000 assigned).

Development Impact Fees Fund
o Expenditures — net increase $325,800.
o Fund balance - net decrease $325,800.

Grants Fund

o Revenues — net increase $69,597.

o Expenditures — net increase $1,296,400.
o Fund balance — net decrease $1,226,803.

Water Authority

Page 101

Item 10.




o Revenues — net increase $17,000.
o Expenses — net increase $423,000.
o Net position — net decrease $406,000.

e Sanitary District
o Revenues — net decrease $500,000.
o Net position — net decrease $500,000.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution 2022-34 - Amending the budget for fiscal year 2021-2022
2. Budget Adjustment Journal Entry (Exhibit A to Resolution 2022-34)

Page 102

Item 10.




RESOLUTION 2022-34

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella may authorize amendments to the
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget as financial conditions change and City needs arise.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The budget for the Fiscal Year, commencing July 1, 2021 and ending June
30, 2022, shall be amended to incorporate budget adjustments detailed in Exhibit A attached
hereto.

SECTION 2. All obligations and expenditures shall be incurred and made in the manner
provided by and pursuant to State laws and City ordinances, resolutions, and policies related to
purchasing and contracting.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Page 103

Item 10.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-34 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23" day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Page 104

Resolution No. 2022-34
Page 2

Item 10.




City oF COACHELLA

Item 10.
53-990 Exterrist Way, Coacneria, Cavrrorsia 92236
Proxe (760) 398-3502 & WWW.COACHELLA ORG
REQUEST FOR BUDGET
ADJUSTMENT/AMENDMENT
BA20
REVENUE ACCOUNT NO. Amount
Property Taxes 101-11-110-10-301-000 150,000
uutT 101-11-110-10-322-000 160,000
Construction Permits 101-11-144-40-347-000 150,000
Other Revenue 101-11-110-90-369-000 2,816,000
Derived Product Grant 101-11-160-90-152-000 69,597
Derived Product Grant 152-12-345-30-331-003 69,597
Water - Connection Fees 177-21-211-40-342-000 (300,000)
Water - IRWM Grant 178-21-330-41-339-000 300,000
Water - Other Revenue 178-21-211-91-369-000 17,000
Sanitary - Connection Fees 360-21-211-40-342-000 (500,000)
Total Revenue Budget 2,932,194
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NO. Amount
4th of July Event 101-11-160-10-801-005 40,000
Solid Waste AB 1383 Professional Services 101-11-148-10-334-000 25,000
6th Cycle Housing Element Consultant 101-11-141-10-334-000 9,000
DIF Fee Audit Firm Analysis 101-11-131-10-334-000 9,000
Dateland Park Mural Donation 101-11-160-10-801-001 10,000
Communications 101-11-161-90-530-000 34,100
Software Licensing 101-11-161-90-612-000 52,000
IT Consultants 101-11-161-90-334-000 38,000
Computer & Communication Peripherals 101-11-161-90-611-000 6,000
EOC Replacement Laptops 101-11-156-10-610-000 28,800
Park Cleaning & Special Events 101-11-146-10-117-000 10,000
Facilities Maint 101-11-165-90-117-000 19,000
Facilities Configuration 101-11-165-90-430-002 24,000
Fuel 101-11-164-90-620-012 21,000
Animal Control 101-11-157-10-334-000 15,900
Trustee Fees - 2016 Lease Bonds 121-12-311-10-334-000 3,300
Reimbursement Agreement 126-12-311-10-334-000 297,500
Interest Payments - GF Advance 129-12-311-10-852-000 25,000
ARPA Direct COVID Costs 152-12-160-83-800-009 36,800
Derived Product Grant 152-12-201-35-910-101 69,600
AHSC - Transit Hub - GoHuman 152-12-292-12-800-000 30,000
AHSC - Transit Hub - Van Pool 152-12-292-12-800-001 1,160,000
Landscape Enhancements - LLMD 16 160-12-195-16-334-000 101,000
Stand-by Time 178-21-120-10-117-000 42,000
Line Repairs 178-21-120-10-430-000 81,000
IRWM Prop 1 Grant 178-06-148-10-739-025 300,000
Total it Budget 2,488,000
NET CHANGE (444,194)
EXPLANATION |
To book 2021-2022 mid-Year budget adjustments approved by City Council
REQUESTED BY:
[ ADMINISTRATIVE Finance Director
BUDGET ADMENDMENT/ADJUSTMENT Nathan Statham
[ FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR TRANSFER ORDINANCE NO.
AMENDMENT NO.
BA2023-014

Page 105




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FroOM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Resolution No. 2022-31 Conducting Property Owner Protest

Ballot Proceedings and Resolution No. 2022-32 Approving the Formation of
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)
(“LLMD 397), Confirming the Engineer’s Report, the Assessment Diagram and
Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments.

Item 11.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Conduct the Public Hearing upon the proposed formation and consider all objections and protests,
whether written or oral; if any; and

Close the Public Hearing and direct staff to conduct Property Owner Protest Ballot Proceedings
and tabulate Ballots for the Formation of Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39
(Sevilla-Tract 38084); and

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-31 Declaring the Results of the Property Owner Protest Ballot
Proceeding Conducted for the Levy of Assessments Related to the Formation of the Landscaping
and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084), Commencing in Fiscal Year
2022/2023

If a Majority Protest does not exist, Adopt Resolution No. 2022-32 Approving the Formation of
the Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084), Confirming the
Engineer’s Report, the Assessment Diagram and Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments
Commencing in Fiscal Year 2022/2023

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

On January 26, 2022, the City Council initiated proceedings for a formation and balloting process
for possible new LLMD 39 along with adopting Resolution No. 2022-07 declaring the City’s
intention to form the special district, to levy and collect assessments, approved the Engineer’s
Report and Assessment Diagram, and declared the public hearing to conduct Property Owner
Protest Ballot Proceedings (Proposition 218).

During the Public Hearing, the City Council shall consider all objections or protests, if any, to the
proposed assessments, whether oral or written. Upon close of the Public Hearing, Proposition 218
ballots received will be opened and tabulated, consistent with all applicable procedures required

Page 106




by Proposition 218 and its implementing statutes, weighted by the proposed assessment amount
on each property, and the results announced. If the time to tabulate the ballot exceeds the time for
the City Council meeting, the City Council may continue the tabulation to the next scheduled
council meeting, so long as such time and location are announced during the meeting.

The returned ballot will remain unopened and in the charge of the City Clerk until the close of the
public hearing and direction to staff to tabulate the ballot. For purposes of tabulation, the return
ballot submitted, and not withdrawn, will be tabulated and weighted according to the financial
obligation of the particular parcel. Article XI11D of the California Constitution provides that if, as
a result of the assessment ballot proceeding, a majority protest is found to exist, the City Council
shall not have the authority to form LLMD 39. A majority protest exists if the assessment ballot
submitted, opposes to the annexation and assessment. If there is no Majority Protest, the City
Council may approve the proposed formation and assessment of the LLMD 39 by adopting the
appropriate resolution(s) attached to this Staff Report. Any voter approved assessment may be
submitted to the Riverside County Auditor/Controller to be included on the property tax roll for
Fiscal Year 2022/2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed assessments have been prepared based upon the maintenance costs necessary and
required to maintain the common areas, perimeter streetscape and drainage landscape areas within
the District. Upfront costs were paid by the developer and annual maintenance cost will be funded
by the assessments that will be collected on the annual tax bill.

Attachments:

Resolution No. 2022-31
Resolution No. 2022-32
Engineer’s Report LLMD 39

Page 107

Item 11.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-31

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE
PROPERTY OWNER PROTEST BALLOT PROCEEDING CONDUCTED
FOR THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS RELATED TO THE FORMATION
OF THE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT
NO. 39 (SEVILLA-TRACT 38084), COMMENCING IN FISCAL YEAR
2022/2023

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella (the “City”) pursuant to the
provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, being Part 2, Division 15 of the California
Streets and Highways Code, commencing with Section 22500 (hereafter referred to as the “Act”),
did by previous resolutions, initiate proceedings for the formation of the Landscaping and Lighting
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084) (the “District”) and declared its intention to conduct a protest
balloting to establish maximum assessments for the Districts commencing in Fiscal Year
2022/2023 for the special benefits received by properties therein for the operation, maintenance
and servicing of landscaping and lighting improvements, and all appurtenant facilities related
thereto; and,

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the California Constitution, Article
XIID, the City Council has caused and conducted a property owner protest ballot proceeding for
the formation of the District and the proposed annual levy of assessments; and,

WHEREAS, the assessment presented to the property owner of record within the District
reflects the special benefit and financial obligation for the costs and expenses related to the
maintenance, servicing and operation of local landscaping and lighting improvements therein as
authorized by the Act and the provisions of the California Constitution and the ballot presented
clearly identified the total amount balloted on the property, the proposed assessment rate, the
property’s annual amount commencing with Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and the inflationary
adjustment applicable to future assessments; and

WHEREAS, upon the close of the Public Hearing held on March 23, 2022, the protest

ballots returned by the landowner of record within the District, was opened and tabulated, the
results of which are illustrated below:

Yes $

No $

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Coachella
as follows:

SECTION 1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Page 108

Item 11.




SECTION 2. The protest proceedings were conducted with the notices and ballots of the
proposed new assessments presented to the qualified property owners within the District as
required by law, with a required receipt of the returned ballots to the City Clerk prior to the close
of the Public Hearing on March 23, 2022.

SECTION 3. The canvass of the protest ballot cast for the proposed assessment and
formation of the District, received prior to the close of the public hearing and weighted according
to the proportional financial obligation of the affected properties is hereby approved and
confirmed.

SECTION 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to enter this Resolution on the minutes of
this meeting, which shall constitute the official declaration of the result of such property owner
protest ballot proceeding.

SECTION 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption and
the City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this Resolution

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Resolution No. 2022-31
Page 2

Page 109

Item 11.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-31 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23" day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Page 110

Resolution No. 2022-31
Page 3

Item 11.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA APPROVING THE FORMATION OF THE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 39
(SEVILLA-TRACT 38084), CONFIRMING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT,
THE ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND ORDERING THE LEVY AND
COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS COMMENCING IN FISCAL YEAR
2022/2023

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella (“City”) pursuant to the provisions
of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, being Part 2, Division 15 of the California Streets
and Highways Code, commencing with Section 22500 (“Act”), did by previous resolutions, initiate
proceedings for the formation of an assessment District within the City to be known and designated
as the Landscaping and Lighting Maintenace District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084) (“District”) and
to conduct a protest balloting for the levy of new or increased assessments commencing in Fiscal
Year 2022/2023 for the special benefits received by properties therein for the operation,
maintenance and servicing of landscaping and lighting improvements, and all appurtenant facilities
related thereto in accordance with the provisions of the California Constitution Article XIIID (the
“Constitution”); and

WHEREAS, an Engineer’s Report containing an Assessment Diagram has been prepared,
filed and presented to the City Council in connection with the proceedings for the formation of the
District and the annual levy of assessments related thereto commencing on Fiscal Year 2022/2023
as required by the Act and the Constitution; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has duly held a public hearing regarding these matters and
has conducted a property owner protest ballot proceeding for the proposed new assessments related
thereto, the results of which have been presented and confirmed by this City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to levy and collect an assessment against the parcel
of land within the Distirct for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023
(Fiscal Year 2022/2023), to pay the costs and expenses of the ongoing operation, maintenance,
and servicing of local landscaping and lighting improvements, appurtenant facilities; and the
incidental expenses related thereto that have been determined to be of special benefit to the
property and the development of property, as described in the Engineer’s Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Coachella
as follows:

SECTION 1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2. Based on testimony given, the results of the property owner protest ballot
proceedings and the documents and discussion presented, the City Council has directed and
confirmed any necessary modifications or amendments to the Engineer’s Report previously
presented and filed based on the tabulation of the property owner protest ballots, and said

Page 111

Item 11.




modifications or amendments so reflected by the minutes of this meeting shall by reference be
incorporated into the approved Engineer’s Report.

SECTION 3. The Engineer’s Report and Assessment Diagram connected therewith as
approved, shall constitute the territory and properties within the District, and confirm and establish
the method of apportionment and the maximum assessment rate including the assessment range
formula as presented to the property owners of record in the ballot proceeding. Said assessments
as described in the Engineer’s Report as submitted or amended, including the assessment range
formula described therein, are hereby confirmed and adopted by the City Council.

SECTION 4. Based upon its review (and amendments, as applicable) of the Engineer’s
Report, which has been filed with the City Clerk, the City Council hereby finds and determines
that:

a. The land within the District as approved will receive special benefit from
the operation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping and lighting improvements
and all appurtenant facilities related thereto, to be provided by the District as
described in the approved Engineer’s Report.

b. The District defined by the Assessment Diagrams in the approved
Engineer’s Report includes all the lands receiving such special benefit.

C. The net amount to be assessed upon the land within the District as approved
has been applied based on the formula and method which fairly applies the net
amount on the parcel based on the special benefit to be received by the parcel from
the improvements and services to be provided commencing with Fiscal Year
2022/2023.

SECTION 5. The City Council hereby orders the proposed improvements as described
within the approved Engineer’s Report to be made. The improvements so described generally
include, but are not limited to, the maintenance, operation and servicing of the local landscaping
and lighting improvements established or installed in connection with the development of
properties within the approved District or directly associated with the properties within District
and shall be maintained by the City for the special benefit of the properties therein pursuant to the
Act.

SECTION 6. The adoption of this Resolution constitutes the formation of the District,
proposed assessments, the boundaries of which are contained in the Assessment Diagram; the
establishment of the maximum assessment rate and assessment range formula connected therewith;
and the assessment for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, as
described in the approved Engineer’s Report and adopted by the City Council, and the County
Auditor of Riverside shall enter on the County Assessment Roll opposite each parcel of land the
amount of levy so described in the approved Engineer’s Report, and such levies shall be collected
at the same time and in the same manner as the County taxes are collected. After collection by the
County, the net amount of the levy shall be paid to the City Treasurer.

Resolution No. 2022-32
Page 2

Page 112

Item 11.




Item 11.

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution,
and the minutes of this meeting shall so reflect the City Council’s approval of the formation of the
District, proposed assessments, the adoption and confirmation of the Assessment Diagram, and the
establishment of the maximum assessment rate(s), assessment range formula and the assessments
for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 as described in the approved Engineer’s Report as submitted or
amended herein.

SECTION 8. The City Clerk or their designee is hereby authorized and directed to file the
levy of assessments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 as approved, with the County Auditor of Riverside
upon adoption of the annual Resolution confirming the annual assessments for all parcels in the
District.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Resolution No. 2022-32
Page 3

Page 113




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-32 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23™ day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Page 114

Resolution No. 2022-32
Page 4

Item 11.




27368 Via Industria Suite 200
Temecula, CA 92590

T 951.587.3500 | 800.755.6864
F 951.587.3510

www.willdan.com

CITY OF COACHELLA

ENGINEER’S REPORT

Proposed
Formation of Landscaping and
Lighting Maintenance District No. 39

(Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Establishment of Annual Assessments
Commencing Fiscal Year 2022/2023

Intent Meeting: January 26, 2022
Public Hearing: March 23, 2022

CITY OF COACHELLA
53990 ENTERPRISE WAY
COACHELLA, CA 92236

PREPARED BY
WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES

NOVEMBER 2021
W WILLDAN

Page 115




ENGINEER'S REPORT STATEMENT

Formation of the

City of Coachella
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39
(Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Establishment of Annual Assessments

County of Riverside, State of California

As part of the Resolution of Intention packet presented for the consideration of the Coachella
City Council this Report and the enclosed budgets, diagrams and descriptions outline the
proposed improvements and assessments related to the formation of territory to be known as
the City of Coachella Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract
38084) commencing in fiscal year 2022/2023, commencing in fiscal year 2022/2023. Reference
is hereby made to the Riverside County Assessor’s Maps for a detailed description of the lines
and dimensions of parcels subject to the proposed assessment for the newly formed District.
The undersigned respectfully submits the enclosed Report as directed by the Coachella City
Council.

Dated this day of , 2022

Willdan Financial Services
Assessment Engineer
On Behalf of the City of Coachella

By:

Stacee Reynolds,
Senior Project Manager

By:

Tyrone Peter
P.E. # C 81888

Page 116

Item 11.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item 11.

NI 1 5 10 L O I [ ] 1
PART | — PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. ...ciuiiiiiiisisi s s n s s s nanneas 4
A.PROPERTIES WITHIN THE DISTRICT .....coiiiiiiii e 4
B.IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES ... 4
LANDSCAPING IMPROVEMENTS ....coiiiiiiii e 5

STREET LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS ... 5

PART Il — METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT .....uiuiiiii i ra e e e eeeas 6
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION teeuteeunieeneenncernnceenieenscessceasisessccsssesssssascesnes 6
A.BENEFIT ANALYSIS ...t 7
SPECIAL BENEFITS.tuttittiitniieiiuiienitectuictiteceaiceeiteceaiessseascessessccanes 7

GENERAL BENEFIT wevuuituiiiiniieuiitniiinnietuiinniiinnieeniieniceeiessctesiecasccsnes 7

REASON FOR THE ASSESSMENT ....ooviiiiii e 8
B.ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY .....ouuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9
EQUIVALENT BENEFIT UNITS cieuttuiieuieeieuicenieecenicenieecenicenceencencencnne 9
ASSESSMENT CALCULATIONS ..ceuituiienieenirnncenieenceacenieeeceacensessceanes 10
C.ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA ..., 10

PART Il — THE DISTRICT BUDGET....c.iiiiiiiiiiir s s e s e e 12
PART IV — DISTRICT DIAGRAM. ettt v ra s s s s s e 14
PART V — ASSESSMENT ROLL.euuiuiieiiiiirirsrsr s s s s s s s e 16

Page 117




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

INTRODUCTION

Item 11.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, being Part 2 of Division
15 of the California Streets and Highways Code, commencing with Section 22500 (hereafter
referred to as the “1972 Act’), and in compliance with the substantive and procedural
requirements of the California State Constitution Article XIIID (hereafter referred to as the
“California Constitution”), the City Council of the City of Coachella, County of Riverside, State of
California (hereafter referred to as “City”), propose to form and levy special benefit assessments
for the district to be designated as:

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39
(Sevilla-Tract 38084)

(hereafter referred to as the “District”), which includes all lots and parcels of land within Tract
No. 38084 that will receive special benefit from the landscaping and lighting improvements
installed and maintenance in connection with the development of these residential subdivisions
within the City limits of Coachella. This Engineer’s Report (hereafter referred to as “Report”) has
been prepared in connection with the formation of said District and the levy and collection of
annual assessments related thereto commencing in fiscal year 2022/2023, as required pursuant
to Chapter 1, Article 4 of the 1972 Act.

The City Council proposes to form the District, and levy and collect annual assessments on the
County tax roll to provide ongoing funding for the costs and expenses required to service and
maintain landscaping and street lighting improvements and appurtenant facilities that are
necessary and essential requirements for the development of the properties within the District.
The improvements to be provided by the District and the assessments described herein are
made pursuant to the 1972 Act and the substantive and procedural provisions of the California
Constitution.

The formation of this District and the assessments described herein will provide a funding
source for the continued operation and maintenance of the Landscaping and Lighting
improvements that are directly associated with the development of properties within the District
and for the special benefit of those properties.

The budgets and assessments described in this Report are based on the planned
improvements and development requirements associated with Tract No. 38084. The budgets
described herein, represent an estimate of the direct expenditures, incidental expenses, and
fund balances that will be necessary to ensure proper maintenance, servicing and funding
needs to support the landscaping and lighting improvements that provide special benefit to
properties within the District.

The word “parcel,” for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned its
own Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) by the Riverside County Assessor’s Office. The Riverside
County Auditor-Controller uses Assessor's Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers to
identify properties to be assessed on the tax roll for the special benefit assessments.

As part of this District formation, the City shall conduct a property owner protest ballot
proceeding for the proposed levy of a new assessment pursuant to the provisions of the
California Constitution, Article XIIID Section 4. In conjunction with this ballot proceeding, the City

W WILLDAN Page 118 Page 1




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Council will conduct a public hearing to consider public testimonies, comments, and written
protests regarding the formation of the District and levy of assessments. Upon conclusion of the
public hearing, property owner protest ballots received will be opened and tabulated to
determine whether majority protest exists (ballots shall be weighted based on the calculated
proportional assessment amount for each benefiting parcel), and by resolution the City Council
will confirm the results of the ballot tabulation. If majority protest exists, proceedings for the
formation of the District and the levy of the proposed assessments shall be abandoned. If
tabulation of the ballots indicates that majority protest does not exist for the proposed
assessments and the assessment range formula presented and described herein, the City
Council may approve the Report (as submitted or amended), order the formation of the District,
and approve the levy and collection of assessments. In such case, the assessments for fiscal
year 2022/2023 shall be submitted to the Riverside County Auditor-Controller for inclusion on
the property tax roll for each parcel.

Each subsequent fiscal year, a Report shall be prepared and presented to the City Council
describing any changes to the improvements, the proposed services, the annual budget and
assessments for that fiscal year, and the City Council shall hold a noticed public hearing
regarding these matters prior to approving and ordering the proposed levy of assessments.

This Report consists of five (5) parts:

Part |
Plans and Specifications: A description of the District boundaries and the proposed
improvements associated with the District. The District is being formed with a single benefit
zone encompassing all properties within the territory identified as Pulte Sevilla — Avenue 51
(Tract No. 38084).

Part I
Method of Apportionment: A discussion of benefits the improvements and services provide to
properties within the District and the method of calculating each property’s proportional special
benefit and annual assessment. This section also identifies and outlines an Assessment Range
Formula that provides for an annual adjustment to the maximum assessment rate that
establishes limits on future assessments, but also provides for reasonable cost adjustments due
to inflation without the added expense of additional property owner protest ballot proceedings.

Part Il

The District Budget: An estimate of the annual costs to operate, maintain and service
landscaping and lighting improvements related to the properties within the District. This budget
includes an estimate of anticipated direct maintenance costs and incidental expenses including,
but not limited to administration expenses and the collection of appropriate fund balances to
establish an initial maximum assessment to be approved by the property owners of record. The
special benefit maximum assessment proposed for this District is based on an estimate of the
annual maintenance and operational expenses at full build out of the improvements. The
proposed assessments for the first fiscal year (2022/2023), and each subsequent year shall be
based on the estimated net annual cost of operating, maintaining, and servicing the District
improvements for that fiscal year. The proposed maximum assessment (Rate per Equivalent
Benefit Unit) identified in the budget of this Report establishes the initial maximum assessment
rate for the District in fiscal year 2022/2023 and shall be adjusted annually by the Assessment
Range Formula described in the method of apportionment.

W WILLDAN Page 119 Page 2

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Part IV

District Diagram: A Diagram showing the exterior boundaries of the District is provided in this
Report and includes all parcels that will receive special benefits from the improvements. Parcel
identification, the lines and dimensions of each lot, parcel, and subdivision of land within the
District, are inclusive of all parcels as shown on the Riverside County Assessor's Parcel Maps
as they existed at the time this report was prepared and includes all subsequent subdivisions,
lot line adjustments or parcel changes therein. Reference is hereby made to the Riverside
County Assessor’s maps for a detailed description of the lines and dimensions of each lot and
parcel of land within the District.

Part V
Assessment Roll: A listing of the proposed assessment amount to be presented to the
property owners of record in the protest ballot proceedings required pursuant to the provisions
of the California Constitution. The proposed assessment amount for each parcel is based on the
parcel’'s proportional special benefit as outlined in the method of apportionment and the
proposed initial maximum assessment rate.

W WILLDAN Page 120 Page 3

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

PART | — PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

Item 11.

A. PROPERTIES WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Pulte Sevilla — Avenue 51 (Tract No. 38084), will consists of 107 residential properties and 2
retention basins with associated private streets, utilities, landscaping, and lighting.

The purpose of the District is to ensure the ongoing maintenance, operation, and servicing of
landscaping and lighting improvements installed in connection with development of properties
within the District. This District will provide the financial mechanism (annual assessments) by
which the ongoing operation and maintenance of these improvements will be funded.

The District structure, proposed improvements, method of apportionment and assessments
described in this Report are based on current development and improvement plans including all
estimated direct expenditures, incidental expenses, and reserves associated with the
maintenance and servicing of the improvements.

The District is located within the boundaries of the City of Coachella, generally located east of
Van Buren Street, west of Frederick Boulevard, north of Avenue 51 and generally south of
Avenue 50.

B. IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES

The purpose of this District is to fund the activities necessary to operate the corresponding
landscaping and streetlighting improvements required of properties within the District as well as
the maintenance of landscaping. The maintenance and operation of the landscaping
improvements may include but are not limited to all materials, equipment, labor, and incidental
expenses deemed necessary to keep these improvements in satisfactory condition as well as
the collection of assessment installments for the periodic service activities, repair or
rehabilitation of various improvements and facilities. The street light improvements include
operation of lights only, not maintenance.

Detailed maps and descriptions of the location and extent of the improvements to be maintained
by the District are on file with the Public Works Division and by reference are made part of this
Report. These plans and specifications may be amended or modified from time to time to reflect
future property development within the District or necessary changes to the planned
developments currently approved by the City. The net annual cost to provide and maintain the
improvements determined to be of special benefit shall be allocated to each property in
proportion to the special benefits received from those various improvements. The District
improvements and services are generally described as:

\MWI LLDAN Page 121 Page 4




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

LANDSCAPING IMPROVEMENTS

The landscape improvements to be funded by the District assessments may include, but are not
limited to turf, ground cover, shrubs, and plants; vines, trees; irrigation and drainage systems;
masonry walls, retaining walls, or other fencing; monuments; hardscapes; concrete, gravel, or
decomposed granite trails, pathways and/or access roads; and other related appurtenant
facilities within the District that have been dedicated to the City for maintenance. Other
Improvements including but are not limited to:

« designated parkway side-panels within the rights-of-way or easements adjacent to the
streets and properties within the District, including parkways and entryways;

« various non-street landscaping and/or vegetation management areas including the storm
drainage detention basin areas, trails, and any other dedicated open space or greenbelt
areas within the District; and

At build-out, it is anticipated that the District’'s landscape improvements will generally include,
but is not limited to approximately: eighty-six thousand, eight hundred and thirty-six (86,836)
square feet of ground covering and shrubs including ninety-three (93) irrigated drought-tolerant
trees. Landscaping located on two (2) storm drainage detention basin lots, also on the north
side of Avenue 51, including the entrance at Via Prado as well as the corners of Calle Perez
and Calle Larriva.

STREET LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS
At build-out, it is anticipated that the District's street lighting improvements will generally
include, but is not limited to approximately:

e Providing energy to operate twenty-four (24) street lighting poles within Tract Map No.
38084.

\MWI LLDAN Page 122 Page 5

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

PART Il — METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

Item 11.

The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose of
providing certain public improvements, including the acquisition, construction, installation and
servicing of landscape improvements and related facilities. The 1972 Act requires that the cost
of these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value:

Section 22573 defines the net amount to be assessed as follows:

“The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be apportioned
by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or
parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or parcel from the
improvements.”

The formula used for calculating assessments reflect the composition of parcels within the
District and the improvements and activities to be provided and have been designed to fairly
apportion the cost of providing those improvements based on a determination of the
proportional special benefits to each parcel, consistent with the requirements of the 1972 Act
and the provisions of Proposition 218 and Article XlIII D of the California Constitution.

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

The costs to operate and maintain the District improvements are identified and allocated to
properties on the special benefits conferred. The improvements provided and for which
properties within the District are to be assessed are identified as local improvements and related
amenities that were installed in connection with the development of the properties and/or would
otherwise be required for the development of properties within the District and consistent with
the provisions of the 1972 Act. The assessments and method of apportionment described
herein are based on the premise that these improvements would otherwise not have been
installed and maintained by the County. The improvements were installed as part of the
development or planned development of the parcels within the District and the level of
maintenance required for the improvements is greater than what the County would otherwise
install, maintain, and fund elsewhere in the County.

Article XIII D Section 2(d) defines District as follows:

“District means an area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a
special benefit from a proposed public improvement or property-related service”,;

Article XIII D Section 2(i) defines Special Benefit as follows:

“Special benefit” means a particular and distinct benefit over, and above general benefits
conferred on real property located in the district or to the public at large. General enhancement
of property value does not constitute “special benefit.”

W WILLDAN Page 123 Page 6




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Article XIII D Section 4(a) defines proportional special benefit assessments as follows:

“An agency which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels which will have a
special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an assessment will be imposed. The
proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in
relationship to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and
operation expenses of a public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being
provided. No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of
the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”

A. BENEFIT ANALYSIS

The improvements provided within the District, for which properties will be assessed have been
identified as necessary, desired and/or required for the orderly development of the properties
within the District to their full potential, consistent with the development plans.

SPECIAL BENEFITS

The ongoing maintenance of landscaped areas within the District will provide aesthetic benefits
to the properties and are intended to provide a more pleasant environment to walk, drive, live,
and work. The primary function of these improvements and related amenities is to serve as an
aesthetically pleasing enhancement and open space area for the benefit of the immediate
surrounding properties and development for which the improvements were constructed and
installed, and/or were facilitated by the development or potential development of properties
within the District. These improvements are an integral part of the physical environment
associated with the parcels in the District and while these improvements may in part be visible
to properties outside the District and/or occasionally accessed by the general public, if these
improvements are not properly maintained, it is the parcels within the District that would be
aesthetically burdened and/or impacted directly by potential environmental issues such as dust,
debris, pests, water runoff, erosion, and fire hazards. Thus, the maintenance of these
improvements provides advantages to the assessed properties that affect the assessed parcels
in a way that is particular and distinct from their effect on other parcels and that real property in
general and the public at large do not share.

Collectively these improvements, related amenities, and services which will be funded by the
special benefit assessments, enhance the overall use, presentation, enjoyment, recreational
access, and marketability of the properties, and ensure the long-term cost-efficiency of services
that are obtained through the County provided maintenance (economy of scale).

GENERAL BENEFIT

In reviewing the location and extent of the specific landscaped areas and improvements to be
funded by the District assessments and the proximity and relationship to properties to be
assessed, it is evident these improvements have been installed as part of the development of
properties within the District or are improvements that would otherwise be shared by and/or
required for development of those properties. Although the improvements are largely located on
the north side of Avenue 51, including the entrance at Via Prado as well as the corners of Calle
Perez and Calle Larriva of the development and may be visible and/or accessible to the general
public, it is evident that the ongoing maintenance of these improvements are only necessary for
the appearance and advantage of the properties within the District. It is also evident that these

\MWILLDAN Page 124 Page 7

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

improvements were not required nor necessarily desired by any properties or developments
outside of the District boundaries.

In the absence of a special funding, these types of improvements would not have been installed
by the developer per the City’s conditions and the City’s maintenance of these improvements
would for the most part, be limited to weed abatement (fuel modification areas), rodent control,
and erosion control services only. This basic or baseline level of service would typically provide
for periodic servicing of the open space areas on an as-needed basis. This baseline level of
service, would only provide a level of service that was necessary to ensure public safety,
essential property protection and potential property damage. However, this baseline level of
service results in a far less visually pleasing environment than is created with the enhanced
levels of services associated with the regular landscape maintenance that can be provided
through the District assessments.

In addition to this baseline level of service, it is recognized that there are indirect or incidental
benefits to properties within the District as well as the general public that are associated with
regular landscape maintenance services, including minimization of dust and debris, and
decreased potential water runoff from the open space areas.

It is also recognized that with the regular maintenance of the improvements, the effort and cost
to monitor and address these more indirect issues are reduced to isolated areas and/or less
frequent servicing, and these activities generally represent less than two percent (2%) of the
overall maintenance costs. Therefore, conservatively, we estimate that the costs associated
with these indirect and incidental benefits (General Benefit) do not exceed five percent (5%) of
the combined annual expenses for General Maintenance identified in the annual maintenance
budget contained in "Part Il — The District Budget” of this Report.

REASON FOR THE ASSESSMENT

The assessments proposed to be annually levied and collected on parcels within LLMD 39 are
established to defray the costs of the maintenance, operation, and servicing of improvements,
as previously identified in “Part | - Plans and Specifications” of this Report.

These identified improvements, services and activities and the associated costs to provide such
improvements identified in “Part Ill — The District Budget” of this Report, have been carefully
reviewed and proportionally allocated to the parcels that receive special benefits from those
improvements and services and are inclusive of all parcels that receive special benefits which
are identified in “Part V — Assessment Roll” of this Report pursuant to the provisions of the
California Constitution and 1972 Act. The formulas used for calculating special benefits within
the District as outlined by this Report, have been established to reflect the composition of the
parcels and the improvements and services to be provided and to fairly apportion the cost of
those improvements based on the special benefits to each parcel. The method of apportionment
(method of assessment) set forth in the Report is based on the premise that each assessed
property receives special benefits from the improvements to be funded by the assessments, and
the assessment obligation for each parcel reflects that parcel’s proportional special benefits as
compared to other properties that receive special benefits from the improvements. Furthermore,
such assessments shall be used solely for the maintenance operation and servicing of the
District improvements as authorized pursuant to the 1972 Act and in accordance with the
California Constitution, the proportionate special benefits to each parcel shall be determined in

W WILLDAN Page 125 Page 8

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

relationship to the entirety of the public improvement or the maintenance and operation
expenses being provided and for which the property receives special benefits.

B. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

The method of apportionment for the District calculates the receipt of special benefit from the
respective improvements based on the actual or proposed land use of the parcels within the
District. The special benefit received by each lot or parcel is equated to the overall land use of
the parcel based on the parcel's actual land use or proposed planned development and is
reliant upon the special benefit received from the improvements planned within the District.

To identify and determine the special benefit to be received by each parcel, it is necessary to
consider the entire scope of the District improvements as well as individual property
development within the District. The costs associated with the improvements shall be fairly
distributed among the parcels based upon the special benefit received by each parcel.
Additionally, in compliance with Article XIIID Section 4 of the State Constitution, each parcel’s
assessment may not exceed the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred to
that parcel. The benefit formula used to determine the assessment obligation is therefore based
upon both the improvements that benefit the parcels within the District as well as the proposed
land use of each property as compared to other parcels that benefit from those specific
improvements.

EQUIVALENT BENEFIT UNITS

As previously noted in the “Part 1 — Plans and Specifications” section of this Report, at build-out,
it is anticipated that the District will incorporate one hundred seven (107) Single Family
Residential homes; and landscaped areas and basins which will be funded and maintained
through an annual assessment.

To allocate special benefits fairly between the parcels, an Equivalent Benefit Unit (EBU)
methodology is utilized for this District. The Equivalent Benefit Unit (EBU) method of
assessment apportionment establishes a basic unit (base value) of benefit and then calculates
the benefit derived by each assessed parcel as a multiple (or a fraction) of the basic unit. Based
on an evaluation of the overall property development proposed within the District at build-out
(100 % of the development acreage will be single family residential), for purposes of this Report,
an EBU is the quantum of benefit derived from the funded improvements and services by a
single-family residential parcel or unit. Thus, the "benchmark" property (the single-family
residential parcel/unit) derives one (1.0) EBU of benefit. All other land uses are proportionately
weighted (assigned an EBU) based on an assessment formula that equates the property’s
specific development and property characteristics to that of the benchmark property (single-
family residential). This proportional weighting may be based on several factors that may
include but are not limited to the type and status of development (land use), size of the property,
development plans or restrictions, typical development densities, or other property related
factors. Generally, for most assessment districts the calculation of each parcel’'s proportional
special benefits can be reasonably determined by applying one or more of these factors. For the
District, it has been determined that the key property related factors to be considered in the
determination of the proportional special benefits for each parcel is limited to the property’s
current or approved land use (development type); and the property’s development status
(developed versus undeveloped).

W WILLDAN Page 126 Page 9

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

The following outlines the land use classifications that are associated with or may be associated
with the parcels in the District and the proportional Equivalent Benefit Units established for
those land use classifications.

Single-Family Residential Property — is defined as a fully subdivided residential home site
with or without a structure. For purposes of establishing the proportional special benefits and
equivalent benefit units for other land uses in this District, the single-family residential land use
is designated as the basic unit of assessment and shall be assigned 1.00 EBU per parcel.

Vacant — is defined as property that has been identified as parcels with no development but
have development potential. Although it is recognized that the improvements provided within the
District were primarily constructed and installed as the result of property development, it is also
recognized that the majority of these improvements were constructed in part to support the
overall development of properties within the District and/or Development to their full and best
use, including vacant undeveloped properties. Therefore, it has been determined that parcels
identified as Vacant/Undeveloped Parcels shall be assigned the pro-rata share of the build-out
EBU total (107.00) based on acreage, if the lots have not been sub-divided as indicated on tract
map. The parcels in the District are slated to be fully developed by fiscal year 2022/23.

ASSESSMENT CALCULATIONS

The total number of Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU’s) is the sum of all individual EBU's applied
to parcels that receive special benefit from the improvements. An assessment amount per EBU
(Assessment Rate) for the improvements is established by taking the total cost of the
improvements and dividing that amount by the total number of EBU’s of all parcels benefiting
from the improvements. This Rate is then applied back to each parcel’s individual EBU to
determine the parcel’s proportionate benefit and assessment obligation for the improvements.

Total Balance to Levy / Total EBU = Levy per EBU
Levy per EBU x Parcel EBU = Parcel Levy Amount

C. ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA

Any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting requirements by law.
Prior to the passage of Proposition 218 (California Constitution Articles XllI C and XllI D),
legislative changes in the Brown Act defined a "new or increased assessment" to exclude
certain conditions. These conditions included "any assessment that does not exceed an
assessment formula or range of assessments previously adopted by the agency or approved by
the voters in the area where the assessment is imposed." This definition and conditions were
later confirmed through Senate Bill 919 (Proposition 218 implementing legislation).

The purpose of establishing an Assessment Range Formula is to provide for reasonable
increases and inflationary adjustment to annual assessments without requiring costly noticing
and mailing procedures, which could add to the District costs. Commencing with fiscal year
2023/2024, the amount of the assessment for the District may be increased to adjust for
increases in labor and material costs. This increase will be based upon the greater of three (3)
percent or the annual change in the Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers, for the

\MWILLDAN Page 127 Page 10

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Area, as determined by the United States Department of
Labor, or its successor, without conducting another mailed ballot election.

The Maximum Assessment is adjusted annually and is calculated independent of the annual
budget and proposed annual assessment. Any proposed annual assessment (rate per EBU less
than or equal to this Maximum Assessment) is not considered an increased assessment, even if
the proposed assessment is greater than the assessment applied in the prior fiscal year.

Although the Maximum Assessment will increase each year, the actual assessment may remain
unchanged. The Maximum Assessment adjustment is designed to establish a reasonable limit
on assessments. The Maximum Assessment calculated each year does not require or facilitate
an increase to the annual assessment and neither does it restrict assessments to the adjusted
maximum amount. If the budget and assessment for the fiscal year do not require an increase,
or the increase is less than the adjusted Maximum Assessment, then the required budget and
assessment may be applied without additional property owner balloting. If the budget and
assessments calculated requires an increase greater than the adjusted Maximum Assessment,
then the assessment is considered an increased assessment and would be subject to balloting.

W WILLDAN Page 128 Page 11

Item 11.




Engineer’s Report
City of Coachella| item 11.
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance

District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

PART Il — THE DISTRICT BUDGET

The following budget outlines the estimated annual costs to be collected and deemed necessary
for the operation, maintenance, and servicing of the improvements for the District. The
maximum assessment (Rate per Equivalent Benefit Unit) identified by this budget establishes
the initial maximum assessment for the District in fiscal year 2022/2023. This assessment rate
shall be adjusted annually by the Assessment Range Formula described in the method of
apportionment and collectively this assessment rate and inflationary adjustment will be
presented to the property owners of record for approval as part of the balloting process for new
or increased assessments in accordance with the provisions of the California Constitution,
Article XIII D.

W WILLDAN Page 12
Page 129




Engineer’s Report
City of Coachella| |tem 11.
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance

District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

LLMD 39, (Sevilla-Tract 38084)
Fund Number TBD

Landscape Maintenance Contract $7,266
Landscape Utilities 4,515
Tree Trimming Included in Maintenance
Streetlight Utilities 4,000
Storm Drainage Detention Basin Maintenance 10,442
Total Direct Costs $26,223
e
Levy Administration and Professional Services $254
County Collection Fee 99
City Overhead and Administration 6,632
Total Administration Costs $6,985
T
TOTAL DIRECT AND ADMIN COSTS $33,207
Reserve Collection/(Transfer) $13,111
Capital Improvement Fund Collection General Area & Storm Drainage Detention Basin/(Transfer) 684
General Benefit Contribution (2,171)
General Fund/Other Revenue (Contributions) 0
Total Collections/(Credits) $11,625
Balance to Levi iBudietedi $44,832
Total Parcels 1
Total Parcels Levied 1
Total Equivalent Benefit Units 107.00
Assessment Rate per Benefit Unit $419.00
Maximum Rate per Benefit Unit (Current Fiscal Year) $419.00

Estimated Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $0
Reserve Fund Adjustments 13,111
Estimated Endini Reserve Balance $13,111
Estimated Beginning Capital Improvement Fund Balance $0
Capital Improvement Adjustments 684
Estimated Ending Capital Improvement Balance $684
Page 13
W WILLDAN

Page 130




Engineer’s Report| Item 11.

City of Coachella
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

PART IV — DISTRICT DIAGRAM

The following District Diagram identifies the area of land within the District to be designated
as “Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)”, based on
the development and improvement plans for the District, Riverside County Assessor’'s Maps,
and Riverside County Assessor’s property information as the same existed at the time this
Report was prepared. The District includes Riverside County Assessor’'s Parcel Map Book
768 Page 50 Parcel 2. The combination of this map and the Assessment Roll contained in
Part V of this Report constitute the Assessment Diagram for the District. The maximum
assessment rate, assessment range formula and the proposed assessment amount for each
of the lots and parcels of land within the District, as described herein, shall be presented to
the property owners of record for approval or protest in accordance with the provisions of
the California Constitution.

Page 14
Page 131

V\/ WILLDAN




Engineer’s Report| Item 11.

City of Coachella

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

SITE LOCATION

PROPOSED BOUNDARIES OF CITY OF COACHELLA
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 39

PASED BARCEL QY

L R
CALLE SEVILLE

CITY OF COACHELLA
COUNTY OF RIWERSIDE
STATE OF CALIFORMNIA
1 1T T -~
BEGAS LN % AN
o
= ¥
g H
i
% | a\
RAPH AN

_.'ﬂ+F S1STAVE
-l [y [ A B | [ T T T T T Ty [T 1 | el
Legend
BIETRIET BaUNBARY MAP REFERENCE | ASSESSOR'S PARCEL
O NUMBER NUMBER WWl LLDAN
1 768-050-002

REFEREMNCE THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY ASEEEE0RE MAPE FOR ALL DETAILE CONCGERNING THE LINES AND DIMENESIONE OF SUCH LOTS OR FARCELE.

\0\/ WILLDAN

Page 132

Page 15



Engineer’s Report| Item 11.

City of Coachella
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance
District No. 39 (Sevilla-Tract 38084)

PART V — ASSESSMENT ROLL

Parcel identification for each lot or parcel within the District is outlined in the preceding
Assessment Diagram and is based on available parcel maps and property data from the
Riverside County Assessor’s Office at the time this Engineer's Report was prepared. A
listing of the lots and parcels to be assessed within this District commencing in Fiscal Year
2022/2023, along with the assessment amount for each such lot or parcel is provided below.

If any parcel submitted for collection is identified by the County Auditor-Controller to be an
invalid parcel number for the fiscal year, a corrected parcel number and/or new parcel
numbers will be identified and resubmitted to the County Auditor-Controller. The
assessment amount to be levied and collected for the resubmitted parcel or parcels shall be
based on the method of apportionment and assessment rates described in this Report as
approved by the City Council. Therefore, if a single parcel is subdivided to multiple parcels,
the assessment amount applied to each of the new parcels shall be recalculated and
applied according to the approved method of apportionment and assessment rate rather
than a proportionate share of the original assessment amount.

Assessor's owner EBU Maximum Maximum
Parcel Number Assessment Rate  Assessment
768-050-002 PULTE HOME CO 107.00 $419.00 $44,833.00
Page 16

Page 133
V\/ WILLDAN




STAFF REPORT

3/23/2022
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FrOM: Gabriel Perez, Development Services Director
SUBJECT: Coachella Entertainment Park

SPECIFICS: Adopt Resolution No. 2022-33 approving Entertainment Permit No. 22-01 for
the Coachella Entertainment Park outdoor entertainment venue located on a 1.24
acre site at 85-994 Grapefruit Blvd (APN# 778-030-005 and 778-180-001).
Applicant: Nicolas Meza

Item 12.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. PC 2022-33 approving
Entertainment Permit No. 22-01, pursuant to the findings and conditions of approval contained in
the attached resolution.

BACKGROUND:

The subject site is a 1.24 acre vacant property at 85-994 Grapefruit Blvd, adjacent to the Union
Pacific Railroad, that was the previous location of the H & H Lumber business. The previous
business consisted of a large shade structure, chain link and metal panel fencing, and outdoor
storage of lumber materials. The site is nearby the Downtown Core, which in the General Plan
2035 is intended to provide a convenient and congenial environmental for everyday shopping and
dining, and brings the community together in a one-of-a-kind Coachella center that is the civic
heart of the City. The physical character of the Downtown Center of the General Plan intends for
plazas and squares that punctuate the network of streets, providing larger, comfortable spaces for
formal and informal gathering, outdoor dining, public markets and special events. The subject
proposal proposes a use that is consistent with the General Plan Vision of the Downtown Core as
a place for public markets and special events as a special event center, subject the approval of an
entertainment permit.

Entertainment permits are permitted under Chapter 5.24 of the Coachella Municipal Code under
Title 5 (Business Licenses and Regulations). Application for an entertainment permit require an
investigation of the application by the City Manager and consideration of the proposal at a public
hearing by the City Council. If the City elects to grant the entertainment permit, it may impose
conditions that include:

1. The days and hours during which the entertainment establishment may operate.

Page 134




2. The total number of persons including employees and entertainers allowed during its
operation.

3. Traffic control measures including the number of parking spaces required for the
entertainment establishment.

4. Noise control measures required in the entertainment establishment.

5. Security or safety measures of the patrons, employees, neighbors and general public of the
entertainment establishment, including the number of security personnel which may be
altered by the chief of police.

6. The placement and utilization of hand-held metal detectors at each entrance to the
entertainment establishment for the purpose of ascertaining and removal of weapons from
each and every person entering the entertainment establishment to the satisfaction of the
chief of police.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The applicant, Nicolas Meza, submitted a request for an entertainment permit to allow the
operation of an outdoor entertainment venue on a 1.24 acre site at 85-994 Grapefruit Blvd. The
zoning designation of the commercial center where the store is proposed is within the M-S
(Manufacturing Service). The entertainment venue would accommodate a range of events that
could occur up to 7 days a week and may include, but not limited to:

Outdoor vendor markets

Food fairs

Concerts

Site rental for private special events, including weddings, quinceaneras, and birthday
parties.

Exhibitions

Equestrian demonstrations

The applicant intends to host events centered that provide opportunities for small business vendors
that may not have a brick and mortar establishment with exposure at an accessible venue to sell
retail products or food. The applicant held an all-day event at the location under a special event
permit for the Super Bowl on Sunday, February 13, 2022, which included a variety of vendors that
sold clothing, plants, make-up, medicinal products, and specialty foods. Vendors utilized personal
portable canopies for their vendors spaces. Food vendors were able to sell to customer from the
on-site modified shipping containers.

The applicant indicated that most events will be free entry and free on-site parking to the public,
but special concert events may require paid entry and paid on-site parking. The use of amplified
music is proposed for concert and special events. The applicant is required to comply with the
requirements of the Coachella Municipal Code noise control ordinance.

Page 135

Item 12.




wis Nz ‘1\'.\

Coachella Entertainment Park location

Staff contacted the Lieutenant Vasquez with the Riverside County Sheriff regarding any
concerns for the proposed business that the City Council may want to consider when making
findings or including conditions of approval for the entertainment permit. Lieutenant Vasquez
did not identify any concerns with the business and does not recommend any conditions of
approval. The Fire Department has no concerns with the facility and have provided conditions
of approval for the entertainment venue.

Hours of Operation:

The applicant has not indicated specific hours of operation for the entertainment venue, but is
conditioned to end all events by 2 A.M. Any alcohol service last call shall occur by 1:30 A.M.

Environmental Setting:

The subject site is a vacant site that is substantially surrounded by urban uses, with adjoining
zoning and land uses as follows:

North: Feed Lot/ (M-S, Manufacturing Service)
South: Vacant / (M-S, Manufacturing Service)
East:  Union Pacific Railroad and Agricultural Uses/ (M-S, Manufacturing Service)

West: Coachella Bar and Auto repair businesses/ (C-G, General Commercial)

Page 136

Item 12.




Site Plan / Parking and Circulation:

The site consists of minimal improvements consisting of low level fencing with vine landscaping
and citrus trees in planters. Compacted decomposed granite has been applied to the site as
groundcover to provide a walkable surface and assist with dust control. On-Site parking is
proposed, consisting of 78 parking spaces, accessed from an existing 29 foot wide driveway from
Grapefruit Boulevard. 6 ADA parking spaces are located near the event location entrance. The
surface of the parking lots would remain as compacted decomposed granite and the applicant is
required to employ dust control measures to minimize “fugitive dust”. There are no specific
parking standards identified in the Zoning Ordinance for outdoor entertainment or assembly
venues without fixed seating. The manufacturing service zone parking standards apply to square
foot of building area or storage area. The City Council is able to establish a parking standard for
this permit. The applicant will not charge for on-site parking for routine public events, but intends
to do so for large concert events. The City Council may reevaluate the parking standard and
parking plan for the site when the entertainment permit is considered for renewal after a year
period.

The event area consist of largely open space enclosed by fencing. Two shipping containers have
been repurposed to serve as a food vending location, a bar, and restroom facilities. An eating area
is located in a 43 ft by 126 ft area demarcated by railroad ties and large wooden cable spools that
serve as tables for dining. A low 3 foot high stage for event performances is located toward the
Northeast of the venue. A secondary driveway is also available at the northwest portion of the site
that provides access for event operations and vendors.

Security:

The applicant proposes the use of on-site licensed security for public events. A condition of
approval has been added to the permit that requires licensed security for events that exceed 50
guests or when alcohol is served. All private events that lease from the applicant will be required
to use licensed security. The applicant is required to increase security personnel based on
recommendations by the City Manager or Coachella Police.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Staff has determined that the proposed project is categorically exempt from environmental review
pursuant to the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act as “Existing Facilities”
(CEQA Guidelines, Section 15301). The proposed project consists of the operation, licensing and
minor alteration of an existing location involving no expansion of existing or former commercial
use on the property. The subject site has been used for manufacturing zone related uses and no
expansions of floor area are proposed.

Page 137

Item 12.




FISCAL IMPACT:

As conditioned, the proposed Entertainment Permit would not have any fiscal impacts upon the
City of Coachella finances. There are no additional fees collected for this type of business other
than normal licensing fees for the business.

ALTERNATIVES:

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2022-33 approving Entertainment Permit 22-01 with the staff
recommendations.

2) Approve the Entertainment Permit with new or modified conditions of approval.
3) Make findings and Deny the Entertainment Permit.

4) Continue the item and provide staff direction.

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE

Based on the analysis contained herein and the findings listed below, staff is recommending that
the City Council approve Alternative #1.

Attachments:

Resolution No. PC 2022-33

Vicinity Map

Site Plan

Existing Photos

Applicant Narrative and Leasable Area

gbhwnE

Page 138

Item 12.




Item 12.

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-33

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA,
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT NO. 22-01 FOR
THE COACHELLA ENTERTAINMENT PARK OUTDOOR
ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LOCATED ON A 1.24 ACRE SITE AT 85-994
GRAPEFRUIT BLVD (APN# 778-030-005 AND 778-180-001). APPLICANT:
NICOLAS MEZA

WHEREAS, Nicolas Meza filed an application for Entertainment Permit No. 22-01 to
allow a 1.24 acre outdoor entertainment venue where alcohol is served on a vacant site located at
85-994 Grapefruit Blvd.; Assessor’s Parcel No. 778-030-005 AND 778-180-001 (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on Entertainment
Permit No. 22-01 on March 23, 2022 at the 1515 6™ Street, Coachella, California regarding the
proposed Project; and

WHEREAS, at the City Council hearing, the Applicant and members of the public were
present and were afforded an opportunity to testify regarding the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project is permitted pursuant to Chapter 15.24 of the Coachella
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of the
community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not detrimental
to the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use is to
be located; and

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the
proposed outdoor entertainment venue with where alcohol is served; and

WHEREAS, the site for proposed use relates properly to streets which are designed to
carry the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality
Act, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the public
health, safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Coachella, California does hereby approve Entertainment Permit No. 22-01, subject to the
findings and conditions of approval listed below.

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL OF ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT NO 22-01:

Page 139




The information provided in the application is accurate, complete and truthful, as evidenced
by staff and there are no known violations of any laws, ordinances, or regulations related to
the applicant's fitness to manage or operate the proposed entertainment venue.

The applicant possesses the required moral character to comply with the requirements of
Chapter 5.24 and the conditions of approval imposed herein. As conditioned, the proposed
added security measures will ensure that the public safety for the business will be maintained
to the satisfaction of the Chief of Police.

The applicant has sufficient resources and expertise to operate the proposed entertainment
venue in a safe, professional and effective manner in accordance with the City's Municipal
Code. The owner has successfully operated a similar venue “Coachella Bar” and there have
been minimal complaints or calls for services at this establishment. Additionally, the
applicant was selected through a Request for Proposals process by the City of Coachella to
op;erate awine bar and eating establishment in the 6™ Street “Old Firehouse” building at 1517
6™ Street.

The proposed use will not be in conflict with, but will be in harmony with and in accordance
with the objectives of the general plan because the proposed entertainment venue allows the
intended physical character to provide a convenient and congenial environment for everyday
shopping and dining, the Downtown brings the entire community together in a one-of-a-kind
Coachella center that is the civic heart of the City. Entertainment venue will offer unique
shopping, dining and event experience for small businesses and the public in the pueblo Viejo
area and citywide that accomplished the goals of the General Plan.

The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project is categorically exempt from
environmental review pursuant to the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act
as an “Existing Facilities” project (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15301a). The proposed project
consists of the operation, licensing and minor alteration of an existing location involving no
expansion of existing or former commercial use on the property. The subject site has been used
for manufacturing zone related uses and no expansions of floor area are proposed.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT NO. 22-01:

1.

2.

3.

Entertainment Permit No. 22-01 is an approval for an entertainment venue where alcohol may
be served. This approval is based on the site plan submitted for the proposed project. Violation
of any of the conditions of approval shall be cause for revocation of the Entertainment Permit
No. 22-01.

Any break in service, meaning the closure of the event venue for a period of 180 consecutive
days, will result in the expiration of this Entertainment Permit.

The applicant will agree to defend and indemnify the City of Coachella against all claims,
actions, damages, and losses, including attorney fees and costs, in the event that anyone files
legal challenges to the approval of this project on the basis of the California Environmental

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 2

Page 140

Item 12.




10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

Quality Act (CEQA). The applicant shall execute a standard indemnification agreement subject
to review by the City Attorney before any event is held subject to this permit.

The use shall meet the standards within the limits established by the Coachella Municipal Code
as related to emissions of noise, odor, dust, vibration, wastes, fumes, or any public nuisances
arising or occurring incidental to the establishment or operation.

The applicant shall comply with Noise Control standards of the Municipal Code (Chapter
7.04). Any amplified sound equipment shall be oriented to reduce noise impacts off-site with
consultation from the Code Enforcement Manager.

Hours of operation for event venue may be from 7:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m., seven days a week,
with last call for alcohol service at 1:30 a.m. The City reserves the right to modify the hours
of business operation after 12 months of continuous Entertainment establishment use has
lapsed, based on information provided by the Coachella Police regarding calls for service.

The applicant shall comply with all requirements imposed by the State Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control.

A maximum of 320 guests are permitted on-site for events at any given time. The applicant
shall maintain a count of all event participants on-site at all times during events. Event counts
for concerts shall be maintained by event staff at the main entrance and made available upon
request by the Coachella Police or City Staff.

The applicant shall obtain all other applicable permits, if required, from the appropriate
agencies (i.e. Fire Department, Building Division, Sheriffs Department, Department of Public
Health etc.).

Any large scale concert event that involves more than 320 guests shall require consultation
with the City Manager or designee to determine if a special event permit will be required
through the City Manager's office. Said application and applicable fees shall be submitted a
minimum of five (5) working days, not including days when City Hall is closed, prior to the
event.

Any signs displayed shall comply with the City of Coachella Sign Ordinance.

The permittee shall comply with the Chapter 7.04 of the Coachella Municipal Code, (Noise
Control.)

Signs advertising brands of alcoholic beverages or the availability of alcoholic beverages at
the subject site shall not be visible from the exterior of the building or anywhere off the site.

Licensed security guards shall be required for events that exceed 50 guests or when alcohol is
served. These guards must possess State of California guard cards issues through the
California Department of Consumer Affairs. Additional guards shall be used as needed to
adequately patrol the parking areas. The City Manager, Code Enforcement Manager or Chief
of Police may modify the entertainment permit security plan as deemed necessary to preserve
the safety and welfare of guests and the public.

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 3

Page 141

Item 12.




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

22.

23.

The following preventative measures shall be undertaken to reduce the potential for alcohol-
related problems:

e Food service shall remain available during all hours of operation;

e Taxicab phone numbers shall be posted in visible locations at all times in the area(s) where
alcohol is served,

e All employees selling or serving alcohol shall be required to participate in an alcohol
management training program prior to the operation of selling/serving alcohol; and

e The availability of a variety of non-alcoholic beverages shall be made known and offered
to customers.

Management shall patrol the business premises, parking lot, and the surrounding vicinity,
including the rear driveway area adjacent to the business, during the entertainment venue
operation and until patrons have left the parking area after operation hours. Management shall
ensure that no littering, loitering, or consumption of alcohol occurs in and around the property.

Any and all weapons shall be prohibited at the premises or on the parking lot of the premises
except by those individuals lawfully permitted to possess such.

The Chief of Police shall have the authority and power to temporarily close the establishment
when it becomes apparent that a situation exists wherein there is a probability that the general
welfare and safety of the patrons or of the public may be in jeopardy. If closed under this
condition, the premises will not be allowed to reopen before the beginning of regular business
hours on the date following the closure.

The applicant shall comply with Municipal Code requirements of Chapter 5.24.

The applicant shall employ the use of hand-held metal detectors at all entrances if deemed
necessary by the Chief of Police to protect the safety and general welfare of patrons or of the
public.

Entertainment Establishment Permit No. 22-01 shall be valid for 12 months commencing on
the first day of the operation. A request for renewal must be submitted by the applicant in
order to extend the term of the Permit after the initial term of 12 months has lapsed, at which
time the City Council will review compliance with the conditions of approval and consider
granting up to a 36-month renewal of the entertainment permit. Relinquishment of the
entertainment permit will require an amendment to this resolution, subject to review by the
City Council.

Any violation of the above conditions may result in the issuance of citations and fines, and
may result in revocation of the Entertainment Establishment Permit.

The permittee shall implement and maintain a system by which the permittee separately
identifies each and every adult in the entertainment establishment so as to distinguish each
adult from any and all minors within the entertainment establishment in the service of alcohol.
At a minimum, such system of adult identification shall require the permittee to place a

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 4

Page 142

Item 12.




24,

25.

26.

27.

bracelet on either hand of each adult in the entertainment establishment. In addition, the Chief
of Police is hereby authorized to require other methods and procedures to be implemented
and maintained by any permittee to assure compliance with the requirement that each adult
remain separately identified from any minor at the entertainment establishment.

ADA accessible restrooms shall be provided and available to use by all guests on-site during
events and shall require inspection by the Building Official prior to commencement of events
under this entertainment permit.

All structures, including stages, tenants, cabanas, and bleachers shall be installed, used and
taken down per the engineered specifications stamped by a licensed engineer and on file with
the City of Coachella.

The applicant shall ensure adequate dust control measures are in place to the satisfaction of
the Code Enforcement Manager and the City Engineer. The City Manager, Code
Enforcement Manager, or City Engineer may require additional dust control measures as may
deemed necessary.

On-site event lighting shall be directed away from vehicle and pedestrian traffic on Grapefruit
Boulevard.

Fire Department Conditions:

28.

29.

30.

31.

Tents and Membrane Structures - Tents in excess of 400 square feet shall not be erected for
any purpose without first obtaining approval and a permit from the Office of the Fire
Marshal.

Temporary Special Event Structures - Temporary special event structures in excess of 400
square feet shall not be erected for any purpose without first obtaining approval and a permit
from the Office of the Fire Marshall and the Riverside County Building and Safety Division.

Vendor and food concession distribution - The placement and use of cooking appliance shall
be approved by the fire code official. Portable fire extinguishers shall be available for
cooking operations.

Hazardous Materials - The storage, use and handling of hazardous materials including
liquefied petroleum gas, flammable and combustible liquids will require a permit from the
Office of the Fire Marshall.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23" day of March 2022.

Steven A. Hernandez
Mayor

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 5

Page 143

Item 12.




ATTEST:

Angela M. Zepeda
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carlos Campos
City Attorney

Page 144

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 6

Item 12.




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
CITY OF COACHELLA

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-33 was duly adopted by
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 23™ day of

)

) ss.

)

March 2022, by the following vote of Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC
Deputy City Clerk

Page 145

Resolution No. 2022-33
Page 7

Item 12.




Attachment 2
Item 12.

A

s [,
[

-

=

!
A
-
=
| |
B
s
r b
T ]

7 ViR R i v % [anlk 3
¥ynEa] A o

N r!hékﬂﬂ_ Solirce: {ESTiMNlaxam GEoEyeyEarthstarl6eographics, CNE’S/A‘iFEUs' A
o 9 \} -J

RN P ST L L et | ERloetus v cstae BCRIDIGN xandithe GIS UserGon

Vicinity Map
Page 146



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 2


Attaghpen 3

arentet] A ¢

swaryleg  *

2

syape oy Qﬂ@,

(v= ox Xsl)
Mrl._uahu.m aﬁ)h\\_\.&&.“_ ﬂqﬁk&ﬁ\ﬁ&p}qﬁ i

.Mﬁi THNAN A&tﬁu\ shvif - 06 - % \.ﬁ
P
Fa 1 )
[ el 42ad asg ﬁ f7
[ LY 7. 12l P = B2 o i FaGeR  dVati rin L) §
HE gkt 7 3 - ; i T , & AT 28
L | < B o A i ; aakal
| , el Temvdd ¢ o E g I a I3 0] TR ?Il e MHJ _; _c e 6 i W ~
A o | ® &._ _i_“a _x“_x i k a‘,m.m / 3
| ] . _— st > )
.S <
Nfrﬂvaq ¢ = _ ~ o o
i L T | B # ST LHANANWT & B e
oty < 3 ; i T \ p
aed 517 _.__Eatm "% T o 5 )
[\ IS S ‘...:..,r_..:l....”.”.ﬁ
=3 " | @co, +uo...r az\
B T Iy
s i
5 “ ” ° E g ﬁ Q
..\.... Ky —_
A IS Sy e g

TWATWRY  Svnntioy
Vi


gperez
Text Box
Attachment 3


Attachment 4 Item 12.

Existing Conditions Photos

Perimeter Photo of the site showing low level fence, vine landscaping and trees.

On-site improvements- Site groundcover with compacted decomposed granite for event area and

parking.

Page 148



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Attachment 4

Photos of On-site modified shipping containers for food service and outdoor dining area

Page 149

Item 12.



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Attachment 4 Item 12.

View towards northern portion of event venue

.
i

Northern driveway entrance

Page 150



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


View of Event Stage Area

Page 151

Attachment 4

Item 12.



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 4


Attachm&ht'é

The Coachella Entertainment Park located at
85-994 Grapefruit blvd, Coachella Ca. Is an
outdoor open space that is approximately 1.23
acres and is completely secured by a chain link
fence. The design of this outdoor park will be
used for outdoor events that will include food,
music and art. The two containers on site can be
used as vendor booths and restroom facilities.
Both booths are secured and can be moved at any
time. The site has two large 29ft gates for
emergency vehicle access with onsite parking
that can accommodate 90 vehicles inciuding
handicap parking.

The design of this location is to bring community
events onsite as a family friendly site. As a citizen
and business owner of the City of Coachella my
goal is to keep the entertainment within our city
boundaries. | will welcome any ideas to create a
better Coachella entertainment site.

Page 152



gperez
Text Box
Attachment 6


LEQEND:
LEASE AREA---

FENCE / BARRICADE
UPRRCO. R/W OUTLINED ----

LEASE AREA: 53,960 SQ.FT./1.24 AC

NOTE: BEFORE YOU BEGIN ANY WORK. SEE
AGREEMENT FOR FI1BER OPTIC PROVISIONS.

EXHIBIT "A"

N PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY
COACHELLA. RIVERSIDE COUNTY. CA
M.P. 614.75 TO 614.86 - YUMA SUB.

SP/CA/V-31/51
SCALE: 1" = 100’
OFF ICE OF REAL ESTATE
OMAHA. NEBRASKA DATE: 2-17-2022
DSK FILE: 3080-99

i), Acragite, 0EH, 1E




	Top
	Item 1.	Resolution No. 2022-30, a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361)
	Staff Report - Resolution No 2022-30 RE AB 361
	Resolution No 2022-30 AB 361

	Item 2.	Behavior Health Campus - Glenroy Hotel
	Presentation Behavorial Health Campus - Glenroy Hotel

	Item 4.	Presentation - Energy Efficiency Upgrade Project
	Energy Efficiency Presentation 3-23-22

	Item 5.	Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2022 (City Council)
	CouncilMinutes-03-09-2022

	Item 6.	Voucher Listing — EFT's/FY 2021-22 Expenditures as of March 23, 2022, $1,318,936.46.
	220323 Warrant Register

	Item 7.	Resolution 2022-29 Adopt SB1 Project List
	Staff Report_Reso 2022-29
	Proposed Project List Resolution

	Item 8.	Measure A Funding
	Measure A Staff Report 2022
	Att. A FY 2022.23 - FY 2026.27 Measure A Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections
	Att. B - FY23-27 CIP and FY22 Project Status Report - Coachella
	Att. C FY 2022.23 Agency MOE Certification Statement
	Att. D - City of Coachella Measure A Final Report 2021
	CIP 5 Year Measure A

	Item 9.	S-24 Atlas PSA Amendment #1
	S-24 Atlas PSA Amendment  1 Staff Report
	1st Amendment Atlas PSE S-24

	Item 10.	2021-22 Mid-year Budget Update
	Mid-Year - Staff Report - 2021-22
	Mid-Year - Resolution - 2021-22
	Mid-year - Exhibit A - 2021-22

	Item 11.	Public Hearing for Resolution No. 2022-31 Conducting Property Owner Protest Ballot Proceedings and Resolution No. 2022-32 Approving the Formation of Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 39 (Sevilla–Tract 38084) (“LLMD 39”), Confirming the Engineer’s Report, the Assessment Diagram and Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments
	Agenda - LLMD 39 Formation and Public Hearing 3 23 22
	Reso - LLMD 39 Declaring the Results of the Ballot 3 23 22
	Reso - Approving the Formation of LLMD 39
	Final Engineers Report - LLMD 39

	Item 12.	Adopt Resolution No. 2022-33 approving Entertainment Permit No. 22-01 for the Coachella Entertainment Park outdoor entertainment venue located on a 1.24 acre site at 85-994 Grapefruit Blvd (APN# 778-030-005 and 778-180-001).  Applicant: Nicolas Meza
	(1) CC Staff Rpt 03-23-22 - Ent Permit 22-01
	(2) Attach 1 - Reso No 2022-33 Ent Permit 22-01
	(3) Attach 2 - VICINITY MAP
	(4) Attach 3- SITE PLAN
	(5) Attach 4 - Existing Conditions Photos
	(6) Applicant Narrative and Leasable Area

	Bottom

